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NEEF
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Corporate Information
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBREE

REVENUE Y%

20204

RMB1,278.8m
AR¥1,278.8BE T

RMB1,578.2m
2019$ _ /\EB¥1'578-2§;%7_E
° ° ° ° ° ° ° ° °
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RMB288.4m
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GROSS PROFIT MARGINS FEFl| &
% 2020 2019
% 20204 20194
Construction Service BERK 21.0 21.4
Leasing of construction machinery, equipment  EEHH - [ERIAHEE 38.6 35.8
and tools
Sewage Treatment Operation SKEEEK 8.4 13.2
Others Hi 9.2 29.8
Overall = 22.6 22.4
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Financial Highlights
MBRE

KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS = EB L &

GEARING RATIO B &FLL RO
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5T

1) Gearing ratio is calculated based on the net debts (including interest-bearing loans and borrowings, and payables for acquisition of equipment by
instalments, less cash and cash equivalents) divided by the equity as at the end of reporting period and multiplied by 100%.
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1FH -

2) Current ratio equals current assets divided by current liabilities.
R EERRBEERARDEE -

3) Return on equity equals profit for the year divided by the closing balance of total equity and multiplied by 100%.
T 2 101 S 3R BB 0 I B DA SR AR R S IR B A TR LA 100% 5T B AG 1 ©

4) Return on total assets equals profit for the year divided by the closing balance of total assets and multiplied by 100%.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Jianzhong Construction Development Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), | am pleased to present the
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, we continued to be a
leading construction services provider based in Fujian Province of the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") which specialises in offering
one-stop solutions in construction works. Our competitive advantage
remains on our ability to manage and execute construction works
projects on a timely and reliable manner. With an experienced
management team, in-house R&D capabilities, large fleet of
construction machinery and equipment and production base, we
have established ourselves as a comprehensive service provider in

the construction works market in both Fujian Province and the PRC.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFRHE

The shares of the Company were successfully listed (the “Listing”) on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 18 March 2020 (the “Listing Date”). The Listing
on the Stock Exchange marked a_significant milestone in our
strategic development and was a significant recognition of the
Company’s solid track record. The Listing also strengthened our
capital structure and provided the Company with an efficient
platform for capital raising. With the proceeds from the Listing, the
Company will be able to capture greater opportunities in its future
development and bring value to the shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the operating
environment of the Group remained challenging due to the
prolonged outbreak of COVID-19. The pandemic has adversely
impacted the general economy of the PRC, including the
construction sector. Certain customers postponed, slowed down
and/or terminated their construction projects and delayed their
payments to the Group due to tight liquidity. Additional allowance
needs to be made on aged trade receivables and contract assets. As
a result, the Group's revenue and net profit decreased by 19.0% and
66.6% respectively for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFRBE

In view of the adverse impact brought by the pandemic, the Group
has been closely monitoring the impact of the developments on the
Group’s businesses and has put in place contingency, such as
negotiating with major customers, suppliers and subcontractors
about the arrangements for resumption of construction works and
reducing unnecessary operating expenses. As far as the Group’s
businesses are concerned, the Group has adopted a more prudent
approach in tendering for new construction projects and has
secured more contracts on leasing of construction machinery,
equipment and tools, with an aim to balance our income mix and
maintain the profit margin of the Group. In September 2020, the
Group obtained a second class license of main contractor in general
construction works. With the new license we can secure a wider
range of construction projects directly from the property developers
in addition to the subcontracting works from the main contractor.
We believe that it could further diversify the Group’s business
portfolio and broaden the income stream.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to pay close attention and
promptly react to the changes in the market conditions and to
maximise shareholders’ value.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude to our
shareholders, customers, subcontractors and suppliers for their
continuous confidence and support. | would also like to take this
opportunity to express my sincere thanks to our management and
staff members for their hard work to the Group.

Mr. Xun Minghong
Chairman and Executive Director

Fujian, 29 March 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE WD

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a leading construction services provider based in
Fujian, the PRC. The construction services provided by the Group
mainly covers (i) foundation works (i) formwork and scaffolding
works; (iii) construction of sewage treatment infrastructure; and (iv)
other construction works. We also have an extensive fleet of
construction machinery and equipment, which enables us to handle
complicated and/or sizable construction works, thus allowing us to
capture more opportunities in the construction market and engage in
construction machinery, equipment and tools leasing services. We
also operate a sewage treatment plant and engage in the sales of
construction materials and equipment and others. We developed as
a regional foundation works service provider in Fujian and have
further extended our footprint across a number of other provinces in
the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the operating
environment of the Group remained challenging due to the
prolonged outbreak of COVID-19. The pandemic has adversely
impacted the general economy of the PRC, including the
construction sector. This led to certain construction projects of the
Group being postponed, slowed down and/or terminated by the
customers. Moreover, the Group has adopted a more prudent
approach in tendering for new construction projects. As a result, the
Group recorded a drop in revenue from construction services of
approximately RMB344.0 million, or 23.6% compared to the year
ended 31 December 2019, from approximately RMB1,456.7 million to
approximately RMB1,112.7 million.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the total contract value of
new projects (including subsequent variation orders) awarded by the
customers was approximately RMB1,264.6 million. As at 31
December 2020, we had 75 projects on hand (including projects in
progress and projects which were awarded to us but have yet to
commence) with an outstanding contract value to be completed of
approximately RMB1,129.4 million.

With the aim to balance the income mix and maintain the profit
margin, the Group has secured more leasing contracts during the
year ended 31 December 2020. The revenue from leasing of
construction machinery, equipment and tools services increased by
approximately 23.7% from approximately RMB107.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB132.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020, represented approximately
10.4% (2019: approximately 6.8%) of the total revenue.

Moreover, in order to broaden the income stream to cover more
varieties of construction services, the Group obtained a second class
license of main contractor in general construction works in
September 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEFWED T

PROSPECTS

The construction industry in the PRC is highly fragmented and has
been supported by various governmental policies over the vyears.
With the Company’s solid track record and the enhanced profile
after the Listing, the Directors remain optimistic about the
development of new business opportunities in the PRC in the long
run.

However, the operating environment of our Group remained
challenging due to the prolonged outbreak of COVID-19, and to some
extent it has impacted the liquidity position of the construction
sector. In view of this, we will exercise due care in managing the
existing core business, and continue to look for new business
opportunities to bring value to our shareholders.

RE

SEK - hERETESENM - WEHIEE
BRI R SH - BHAD AR HA RS
BEEMENALERA  EEHEAMS
e BRI AR 20 -

SR - ARCOVID-19RIBTN A E  KEE
ML EIRIBDMATTRSE, - WHEEIPIHN
RBESHNEKR —TCTRENTE - FER
I BRPE2EEREREROER  THES
Wik ARG REE -

@ JIANZHONG CONSTRUCTION DEVELOPMENT LIMITED  Annual Report 2020



L

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEERWED T

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Segment Information
The Group’s reportable and operating segments are as follows:

i)

Provision of construction service (“Construction service”);

Provision of leasing services of construction machinery,
equipment and tools (“Leasing of construction machinery,
equipment and tools”);

Provision of sewage treatment service (“Sewage treatment
operation”); and

Sales of construction materials and equipment and others
(“Others").
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEFWED

Revenue

g z=
For the year ended 31 December

BZE12A318LLEE

2020 2019
20205 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000 %

AR¥T ARETTT %

Construction service BER 1,112,662 87.0 1,456,680 92.3
Leasing of construction BN RERTA

machinery, equipment and HE

tools 132,469 10.4 107,119 6.8

Sewage treatment operation e BEES 4,255 0.3 5,213 0.3

Others HAh 29,383 2.3 9,206 0.6

1,278,769 100 1,578,218 100

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the overall revenue of the
Group has decreased by approximately RMB299.4 million, or
approximately 19.0% compared to the year ended 31 December
2019, from approximately RMB1,578.2 million to approximately
RMB1,278.8 million. The Construction service segment continued to
be the largest business segment of the Group in terms of revenue
during the years under review. However, with the aim to balance the
income mix and maintain the profit margin, the Group has secured
more leasing contracts during the year ended 31 December 2020,
which led to the increase in proportion of revenue from Leasing of
construction machinery, equipment and tools.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales mainly comprises of material cost, labour
subcontracting fee, depreciation and others. The overall decrease in
cost of sales was in line with the trend of the turnover. During the
year ended 31 December 2020, the overall cost of sales of the
Group has decrease by approximately RMB233.9 million, or
approximately 19.1% compared to the year ended 31 December
2019, from approximately RMB1,224.2 million to approximately
RMB990.3 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEFWED

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Set out below is the breakdown of the gross profit and gross profit
margins of our Group by business segment and work type during the
year under review and the corresponding period in 2019:

EMREF=R

REBFE R2019FRMEEE SR ITIE
RSB AEBEENREMNEFBFHTIN
™

For the year ended 31 December

BZE12A318LLEE

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 GP % RMB'000 GP %
AR¥T T EFNR% PN R EFE%
Construction service BERS 234,181 21.0 312,269 21.4
Leasing of construction I RERTA
machinery, equipment and HE
tools 51,189 38.6 38,318 35.8
Sewage treatment operation EBEES 358 8.4 689 13.2
Others Nl 2,703 9.2 2,747 29.8
288,431 22.6 354,023 22.4

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, our Group’s
overall gross profit margin was fairly stable. We recorded gross profit
margin of approximately 22.6% for the year ended 31 December
2020 (year ended 31 December 2019: 22.4%). As a result of change
in income mix, the decrease in gross profit margin of Construction
service was off-set by the increase in gross profit of Leasing of
construction machinery, equipment and tools, which shared a higher
proportion of revenue during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Other net income

The other net income mainly represented government grants,
interest income and gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the other net
income has decreased by approximately RMB5.4 million, or
approximately 34.6% compared to the year ended 31 December
2019, from approximately RMB15.6 million to approximately RMB10.2
million. The decrease in other net income mainly attributable to the
decrease in government grants during the year.

H E2020%F R2019F 12 A3MB I EE - K&

BEEEFEHEERT - MR B E20205F
12A31B IEFEHEHNEFNEL H22.6% (&
FE2019F 128318 IEFE : 22.4%) - AR
ANBE B BERBEME TR HEEZ2020
F12A31H EFE RSP E SR ER
W BRERTERENTR MK -

H At F A

HAFRA T BIEBAMED - FE ALK
HEME  BERREMWE - 8 £2020%F
12A3MBEFE - S RARE E2019F
12ANBLEFENNARB15.6BETH D
MARESABBITHAIZM.6%ELARKE10.2
BET EMFRANBRDEIERERARFA
B 8 B >

BHERBRRERAT —E_TFFER e



-
—
s

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFWED T

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses mainly include (i) research and
development costs; (i) salaries and other benefits; and (iii) listing
expenses. The administrative expenses decreased by approximately
21.6% from RMB118.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2019
to RMB93.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2020. The
decrease in administrative expenses was mainly due to the
reduction in research and development costs, as part of the cost
control measures, in view of the decrease in revenue during the
year.

Impairment losses on assets arising from contracts with
customers

The pandemic has severely affected the progress and cash flow of
projects of customers. In order to preserve more cash to combat the
adverse impact of the pandemic, the property developers and
project owners slowed down their payment to the Group’s
customers which, in turn, delayed their payment to the Group. The
delay in payment from customers resulting in more long-aged trade
receivables and contract assets of the Group being recorded as at
31 December 2020. As a result, the amount of impairment losses on
assets arising from contracts with customers increased significantly
from approximately RMB20.8 million in the year ended 31 December
2019 to approximately RMB114.8 million in the year ended
31 December 2020.

As at 31 December 2020, approximately RMB104.0 million of the
trade and bills receivables were aged more than 12 months (31
December 2019: approximately RMB18.8 million), in which
approximately RMB83.4 million, or 80.2% were due from state-owned
enterprises. The Group is now following up with customers for
payment and taking appropriate legal actions against certain
customers to safeguard its legal rights.

During the period from 1 January 2021 to the date of this annual
report, the settlement of the trade and bills receivables was
amounted to approximately RMB461.7 million, represented 55.1% of
the trade and bills receivables balance as at 31 December 2020. All
of the subsequent settlements were settled in cash. Moreover, the
Directors are of the opinion that there is no change in business
relationship with the major customers subsequent to the year-end
date, and believe that a considerable amount of the trade
receivables and contract assets can be recovered.

Finance costs

Our finance costs mainly represented (i) interests on bank loans; (ii)
interest on acquisition of equipment by instalments; and (iii) finance
charges on sale and leaseback transactions.
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Our finance costs increased by RMB1.1 million from RMB17.4 million
to RMB18.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 when
comparing with that for the year ended 31 December 2019. This was
mainly due to that our bank borrowings increased during the year.

Income tax expenses

AS a result of the decrease in profit before taxation of the Group,
the income tax expenses has decreased by approximately RMB19.8
million, or approximately 68.0% compared to the year ended 31
December 2019, from approximately RMB29.1 million in 2019 to
approximately RMB9.3 million in 2020.

On 7 January 2020, Fujian Jianzhong Construction Technology Co.,
Ltd. ("Jianzhong Construction Technology”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, obtained the state-level approval for its
application of High-tech Enterprise qualification and was granted the
qualification with effect from 2 December 2019. In accordance with
the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law (“CIT Law"), the High-tech
Enterprise qualification will be valid for a period of three years from
2019 to 2021 and entitles Jianzhong Construction Technology to a
reduced tax rate at 15% during this period.

In December 2020, Fujian Jinghai Engineering Service Co., Ltd.
("Jinghai Engineering”), another indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, obtained the state-level approval for its application of
High-tech Enterprise qualification and was granted the qualification
with effect from 1 December 2020. In accordance with the CIT Law,
the High-tech Enterprise qualification will be valid for a period of
three years from 2020 to 2022 and entitles Jinghai Engineering to a
reduced tax rate at 15% during this period.

The Group's other subsidiaries in mainland China is subject to PRC
statutory corporate income tax of 25%.

Profit for the year and earnings per share

As a result of the foregoing, particularly the significant increase in
impairment losses on assets arising from contracts with customers
from approximately RMB20.8 million in the year ended 31 December
2019 to approximately RMB114.8 million in the year ended 31
December 2020, the net profit for the year of the Group decreased
by approximately RMB119.4 million, or approximately 66.6%, from
approximately RMB179.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 to approximately RMB59.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2020. Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2020 were RMB0.1 (2019: RMBO0.38).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on
18 March 2020.
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The Group maintained a sound financial position as at 31 December
2020. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's
operation and capital requirements were financed principally through
a combination of cash flows generated from the operating activities,
proceeds from the Listing and bank borrowings. As at 31 December
2020, the Group had cash and cash equivalent of approximately
RMB200.9 million (31 December 2019: approximately RMB103.0
million) in which approximately RMB14.8 million (31 December 2019:
RMB79,000) equivalent cash were denominated in Hong Kong dollar.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had net current asset of
approximately RMB671.7 million, representing an increase of
approximately RMB219.5 million as compared to that of
approximately RMB452.2 million as at 31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2020, the gearing ratio of the Group, calculated
based on the net debts (including interest-bearing loans and
borrowings, and payables for acquisition of equipment by
instalments, less cash and cash equivalents) divided by the equity as
at the end of reporting period and multiplied by 100%, was
approximately 23.4% (31 December 2019: approximately 6.0%).

All the Group’s loans and borrowings were denominated in
Renminbi. As of 31 December 2020, included in loans and
borrowings and other payables of approximately RMB321.1 million
were fixed rate borrowings (31 December 2019: approximately
RMB81.2 million). Particulars of loans and borrowings of the Group
are set out in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had capital commitments in
respect of purchase of property, plant and equipment, which had
been contracted but not provided for in the financial statements, in
the total amount of approximately RMB10.0 million (31 December
2019: approximately RMB8.1 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2020 (31 December 2019: Nil).

TREASURY MANAGEMENT

The Group has a sufficient level of cash and banking facilities for the
conduct of its trade in the normal course of business. The
management of the Group closely reviews trade receivable balances
and any overdue balances on an ongoing basis and only trade with
creditworthy parties. The management of the Group closely monitors
the Group's liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of
the Group's assets, liabilities and commitments can meet its funding
requirements to manage liquidity risk.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has a total of 554 full-time
employees (31 December 2019: 473). The Group has developed its
human resources policies and procedures to determine the
individual remuneration with reference to factors such as
performance, qualification, responsibilities of each individual, market
conditions, etc. Remuneration packages are normally reviewed on a
regular basis. Apart from salary payments, other staff benefits
including provident fund contributions, medical insurance coverage,
annual leave and options which may be granted under the share
option scheme were adopted by the Company on 18 February 2020.
The total staff costs (excluding Directors’ remuneration) incurred by
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 was
approximately RMB57.3 million (year ended 31 December 2019:
approximately RMB51.9 million).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had
a minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most of its business
transactions were conducted in the PRC in RMB. Moreover, the
Group’s assets and liabilities are principally denominated in RMB. As
such, the Directors believe that the Group’s risk in foreign exchange
is insignificant.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of the machinery
and equipment pledged for the sale and leaseback transactions as
disclosed on note 10 of the consolidated financial statements were
RMB92.6 million (31 December 2019: RMB14.8 million); machinery
and equipment of RMB71.6 million (31 December 2019: nil) was
pledged as security of certain bank borrowings; and bank deposits of
RMB17.0 million (31 December 2019: RMB2.7 million) were pledged to
banks as security for bills payable.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 5
February 2019 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The Group completed the
group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) in preparation for the
Listing on the Stock Exchange pursuant to which the Company
became the holding company of the Group. For further information
in relation to the Reorganisation, please refer to the section headed
“History, Reorganisation and Corporate Structure” in the prospectus
of the Company dated 29 February 2020 (the “Prospectus”). Apart
from the Reorganisation, there were no significant investments held,
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.
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DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK2.08
cents (2019: nil) per ordinary share for the financial year. The total
dividend payout for the year is approximately HK$13.0 million
(equivalent to approximately RMB10.9 million) (2019: nil) or a
dividend payout ratio of 18.2% (2019: nil). Subject to shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
the final dividend will be paid in cash on or around 19 July 2021 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on 5 July 2021.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on
18 March 2020. The net proceeds from the Listing, after deducting
the listing-related expenses, were RMB182.7 million (the “Net
Proceeds”). The table below sets out an adjusted allocation as
adjusted in the same manner and same proportions as shown in the
Prospectus and the progress of the actual use of the Net Proceeds
as at 31 December 2020:

B
ETCREMAMBREE RN RBREER
@A 2.088 L (20194 « ) - AFFHRE
BEHNB13.08EETHERHARE10.9
BE L) (20194 @ #) R Bt K 518.2%
(2019F + ) - FRARREERRBEFTAS
FESERERER KR EBR202147 8
198 kA& AR & 77 VR T RR2021567 A5
BEIAQRRRLMEAPER -

FRERERE

AN FREAD 202043 F 18 A FEB RS 7 o
Mk EMHEBERER - EWHREREFES
BARBIQ7EET([FIEREFE]) - T
REFIN2020F 12 AN KR ABRDE -
BHRERBRERAMRGT AR GIER
NS RBEFENERFEREE

Actual
use of Net
Proceeds from

the Listing Remaining
Planned Date to balance Expected timeline of
use of 31 December of Net utilisation of the remaining
Net Proceeds 2020 Proceeds net proceeds
METHEE
20205128
31HWAE
FERERE NEFRE MEREFE DRAMSTHRSIEREMN
STEAR ERRAR ArGsn AHRH
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Pl 5t ARETT ARETT ARBTR
1) to fund construction projects 1) BRLIER 1 127,892 (76,300) 51,592  Year ending 31 December
2021
BE2021512A3181LEFE
2) to expand fleet of construction 2) BRBRERN R 2 36,541 (16,449) 20,092 Year ending 31 December
machinery and equipment RE 2021
BE2021512A3181LEFE
3) for working capital and general JBEEEARR 18,270 (18,270) —
corporate purposes —REERR
182,703 (111,019) 71,684
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Notes:

As disclosed in the section “Future Plans And Use Of Proceeds” in the
Prospectus, the Company planned to apply approximately RMB127.9
million (equivalent to approximately 70% of the Net Proceeds) to fund
construction projects. However, due to the prolonged outbreak of
COVID-19, some construction projects were either delayed, changed in
scope of work or terminated. As a result, approximately RMB51.6
million remained unutilised as at 31 December 2020:

As the construction service segment will continue to be the largest
business segment of the Group in the year ending 31 December 2021,
the Board estimated that the unutilised Net Proceeds of approximately
RMB51.6 million will be allocated to fund the other construction
projects of the Group in the year ending 31 December 2021.

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Company intended to apply
approximately RMB36.5 million (equivalent to approximately 20% of the
Net Proceeds) to expand fleet of construction machinery and
equipment. As at 31 December 2020, approximately RMB16.4 million
had been utilised for the acquisition of tower crane and passage hoist
as planned.

Approximately RMB20.1 million had not been used as at 31 December
2020. The postpone of the acquisition was a result of decrease in
immediate needs for construction machinery and equipment from our
construction projects due to the prolonged outbreak of COVID-19. In
view that the utilisation rate and profit margin from leasing of tower
crane and passage hoist will be better, the Board intends to use the
remaining Net Proceeds of approximately RMB20.1 million to acquire
more tower crane and passage hoist in the year ending 31 December
2021. The Board believes that such arrangement to acquire more
tower crane and passage hoist will also allow the Group to capture
better opportunities in leasing of machinery and equipment market.

The Board considers that the aforesaid adjusted expected timeline of
utilisation of Net Proceeds is in the best interest of the Company
and its shareholders as a whole and it will not have any material
adverse effect on the existing business and operations of the Group.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xun Minghong (“Mr. Xun MH”), aged 51, was appointed as a
Director of our Company on 5 February 2019 and was redesignated
as the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and an Executive Director
on 23 August 2019. Mr. Xun MH is primarily responsible for
supervising our overall management and planning our business
strategies.

Mr. Xun MH has over 26 vyears of experience in the PRC
construction industry. He accrued vyears of industry experience
during his employment at Anhui Conch Cement Company Limited (%
HERIORRMD BIRAT]), a company whose shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 914) and is a
prominent cement producer and supplier in the PRC. Mr. Xun MH
had held various positions at Anhui Conch Cement Company Limited
during his tenure of employment from July 1993 to December 2002
and his duties covered sales, marketing and management in
different working locations including Fujian Province.

Subsequently, Mr. Xun MH co-established and operated certain
construction-related businesses in the PRC. By virtue of his
diversified knowledge and experience in the construction industry,
Mr. Xun MH also accumulated a variety of business connection with
a network of reputable construction enterprises and contractors in
Fujian. Equipped with such industry knowledge, experience and
strong business networks, Mr. Xun MH founded Jianzhong
Construction Technology on 5 December 2012 and engaged in the
leasing of construction machinery, equipment and tools in Fujian.
Jianzhong Construction Technology had since then diversified its
business to include the provision of a wide spectrum of construction
works as its core business.

Mr. Xun MH obtained the graduation certificate of specialised studies
in law (CE&EZEZ) from Anhui Province Higher Education Self-study
Examination Committee (ZHE ®EHEBEEHEZE ) and Anhui
University (Z#KE2) in the PRC in June 1993.

Mr. Xun MH obtained the Qualification Certificate of Specialty and
Technology (BZRTEMKFZE) from the Ministry of Personnel of the
PRC (2 AR ZLFE A EZ) in April 1994, specialising in the area
of logistics economics (3 & 45 7% 2 %),
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Mr. He Wenlin, aged 51, has been the general manager and a
director of Jianzhong Construction Technology since November 2014
and since June 2016, respectively. He was appointed as a Director of
our Company upon its incorporation on 5 February 2019 and was
redesignated as an Executive Director on 23 August 2019. Mr. He is
primarily responsible for overseeing our overall operation and
business and technical development. Mr. He also leads our R&D
Team.

Mr. He has over 25 years of experience in the construction industry.
Mr. He had held various positions at CSCEC Strait Construction and
Development Co. Ltd. (F&/&RERZERBRRAF]) (previously known
as China Construction Seventh Engineering Division Third
Construction Co., Ltd (FE2+BE=FEAFRAF), with his last
position as a department manager.

Mr. He graduated from Shenyang Institute of Construction and
Engineering (&[5 25 Ti22F) (currently known as Shenyang
Jianzhu University (FEFE5ZZKE)), in the PRC in July 1994 and
specialised his studies in mechanical design and production (##% &%
FTERELEE ).

Mr. He obtained a qualification certificate as senior engineer (=4 T
A& W FEE) from China Construction Seventh Engineering
Department (FREEEE+ T /F) in December 2005.

Ms. Zheng Ping, aged 57, was a director of Jianzhong Construction
Technology from December 2012 to October 2015 and subsequently
served as the deputy general manager and director of Jianzhong
Construction Technology since November 2015 and since June 2016,
respectively. She was appointed as a Director of our Company upon
its incorporation on 5 February 2019 and was redesignated as an
Executive Director on 23 August 2019. Ms. Zheng is primarily
responsible for overseeing our overall operation and fixed asset and
material management.

Ms. Zheng has over 26 years of experience in the construction
industry. From February 1993 to March 2008, Ms. Zheng worked as
an assistant general manager of Fujian Province lJianfu Bulk Cement
Co., Ltd. (fBE BEME/KEBR A ), a then subsidiary of Fujian
Cement Inc. (f@ &/KJel& % B MR A F]), a company whose shares are
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (SSE Stock Code: 600802).
From April 2008 to November 2012, Ms. Zheng worked as a deputy
general manager of Ming Xin Construction Material Trading Company
Limited, a company principally engaged in the trading of cement.
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Ms. Zheng obtained the graduation certificate of specialised studies
in computer application (& # & A Z %) from Fujian Province
Higher and Secondary Professional Education Self-study Examination
Steering Committee (BRE RS HPEEXHNEEEEHNIEZELE
g), Xiamen University (ZPI X&) and Fuzhou University (f&/1 X £2)
in the PRC in December 1993.

Ms. Zheng obtained the Qualification Certificate of Specialty and
Technology (EEFfiT& K& ZE) from the Ministry of Personnel of the
PRC (FFEARKEMEAEE) in December 1996, specialising in
materials economics (¥ & #%). She also obtained a qualification
certificate as an assistant engineer (Bh¥E T#2R0) specialising in
industrial and electrical automatisation (L% &R & #1k) from
Fuzhou City Personnel Bureau (f&/M A EE) in May 1989.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yang Kaifa, aged 47, was appointed as a Non-executive Director
of our Company on 23 August 2019. Mr. Yang has extensive
experience in securities management and the PRC capital markets.
From July 1996 to July 2017, Mr. Yang worked in Anhui Conch
Cement Company Limited (Z#UEBKEMMD B A F]), a company
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 914) where he served, among others, as assistant to the
officer-in-charge (E{1EBHIE), deputy officer-in-charge (8% {f) and
officer-in-charge (F{E) of the secretariat to the board of directors
(BEEEWEZE), secretary to the board of directors (EEFE€ME), as
well as deputy officer-in-charge of the regional management
committee in Jiangxi Region (LA EEZ E®EIE(E). Mr. Yang's
major duties in Anhui Conch Cement Company Limited covered
areas over company secretarial, securities affairs and general
management functions. Since July 2017 and July 2019, Mr. Yang has
served as a deputy general manager (&|##12) and general
manager (##32) of Anhui Conch Venture Investment Co. Ltd.
(“Anhui Conch Venture Investment”’), being one of the Pre-IPO
Investors.

Mr. Yang obtained a bachelor degree of arts (X E&4) studies
specialised in foreign linguistics in English (4Ms8 R ZEFE) from Anhui
University (Z#A£) in the PRC in July 1996.

Mr. Yang obtained the Qualification Certificate of Specialty and
Technology (FE R T EKEZE) as a senior economist (1= A& &7 AM)
from Anhui Province Human Resources Bureau (Z#& AEEE) in
May 2009.
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Mr. Zeng Guohua, aged 53, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of our Company on 23 August 2019. Mr. Zeng has over 24
years of experience in the PRC construction industry. Mr. Zeng
joined Anhui Conch Cement Company Limited (Z &S RER S &
fR A ®]), a company which shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 914) in May 1995 and held several
positions such as (i) head of the cement works technical
department; (ii) head of engineering technical department; and (iii)
committee member of the Indonesia regional management
committee (FIEEFHEEZE®ZS). Since June 2019, Mr. Zeng has
been the assistant in the office of general manager (A424<#8)32) of
Anhui Conch Venture Investment, being one of the Pre-IPO
Investors.

Mr. Zeng completed his studies specialised in port and channel
engineering (8 0 & Mti8 T ) from Changsha Communications
College (KA #B2Fx) (currently known as Changsha University of
Science and Technology (K22 T K£2)), in the PRC in July 1991.

Mr. Zeng obtained a qualification certificate as an engineer (T 2AM)
specialising in industrial and civil engineering (L&) from Anhui
Professional Titles Reform Work Leading Group (Z & BfEck248E
/N4B) in March 1999.

Mr. Xun Liangbao (“Mr. Xun LB”), aged 49, was appointed as a
Non-executive Director of our Company on 23 August 2019. Mr. Xun
LB completed his studies specialised in public management (2 #%&
1) from the Party School of Anhui Provincial Committee of the
Communist Party of China (#Z#&ZER) in December 2007. He
served as a deputy officer-in-charge (g/= ) and officer-in-charge
(=E1E) of the service center at the Anhui Bengbu Municipal People’s
Government Office (ZHEHETARBFHAZE) from March 1993 to
March 2018. He was employed as a vice general manager of the
Bengbu Branch of Jiangsu Wan Rong Construction Technology Co.,
Ltd. (IS IERKARAREHESQE) from March 2018 to
December 2018. He has since then been a director of Jianzhong
Construction Technology from December 2018 onwards.

He obtained the Certificate of Registered Constructor in Construction
Works (GEEE T2 EMZFE) from the Anhui Provincial
Department of Housing and Urban-Rural Development (Z#& F 5
R FREE) in May 2010.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Sze Irons, BBS, J.P, aged 59, was appointed to our Board on 18
February 2020 and does not hold any position with other members
of our Group. Mr. Sze was appointed the Justice of the Peace in
2011 and was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Hong Kong
Government in 2015. He is currently the vice supervisor of the
Committee of Human Resources and Environment of the National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
(FREARBGGAHEEREZEEZEGANERREZE S M), an
executive member of the Beijing Municipal Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (47 B A REBUAH
HMEHILEMEZEEEHZLE), as well as the Permanent Honorary
President of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong.

Mr. Sze has been a member of the HKSAR Election Committee since
2006; and is currently a member of the HKSAR Labour Advisory
Board for 2019-2020.

Mr. Sze has been a director of Hang Tung Resources Holding
Limited, a private company in Hong Kong, since March 1984. The
company is principally engaged in property investment, import and
export trading, provision of management services and shares
investment. He is principally responsible for the day-to-day
management of its business operations, as well as the overall
strategic planning of the company.

Mr. Sze is currently an independent non-executive director of a
number of listed companies on the Stock Exchange, including, (i)
Best Mart 360 Holdings Limited (stock code: 2360), a company
principally engaged in the operation of a leisure food retailer chain,
from December 2018; (ii) ST International Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 8521), a provider of functional knitted fabrics, from April
2018; (iii) Chevalier International Holdings Limited (stock code: 25), a
company principally engaged in the construction and property-
related businesses, from November 2016; and (iv) Continental
Holdings Limited (stock code: 513), a company principally engaged in
the jewellery industry, from October 2008.

Mr. Sze was appointed as a non-executive director of two
companies listed on the Stock Exchange, including, (i) China Weaving
Materials Holdings Limited (stock code: 3778), a company principally
engaged in the manufacturing of yarn products, from May 2011 to
June 2019; and (i) Bel Global Resources Holdings Limited (stock
code: 761) since February 2017. The trading in the shares of Bel
Global Resources Holdings Limited had been suspended since 4 July
2011 and the listing of the shares was cancelled by the Stock
Exchange with effect from 24 August 2018.

Mr. Sze received his degree of bachelor of science from the
University of Wisconsin — La Crosse in the USA in May 1985.
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Mr. Wong Kun Kau, aged 60, was appointed to our Board on 18
February 2020 and does not hold any position with other members
of our Group. He has over 28 years of experience in investment
banking and corporate finance, and is the founder and has been the
chief executive officer of Bull Capital Partners Limited, a fund
management company specialising in direct investments in the
greater China region, since May 2008. Mr. Wong also held several
senior management positions with reputable financial institutions
including BNP Paribas Capital (Asia Pacific) Limited from August 1992
to November 2007, where he left as the head of investment
banking-Asia. He has been an independent non-executive director of
REF Holdings Limited (stock code: 1631), a company principally
engaged in financial printing services, since August 2015.

Mr. Wong was an independent non-executive director of a number of
listed companies on the Stock Exchange, including but not limited to,
(i) West China Cement Limited (stock code: 2233), a company
principally engaged in the manufacturing and sales of cement and
cement products, from July 2010 to May 2019; (ii) Sansheng Holdings
(Group) Company Limited (stock code: 2183), a company principally
engaged in property development and property investment, from
August 2013 to May 2017, and (iiij China Shengmu Organic Milk
Limited (stock code: 1432), a company principally engaged in dairy
farming business and liquid milk business from June 2014 to June
2017. Mr. Wong had also been an independent non-executive
director since May 2012, and the chairman of the audit committee of
Anhui Conch Cement Company Limited (stock code: 914) since May
2013, until his retirement as an independent non-executive director
in June 2016.

Mr. Wong received his bachelor’s degree in social science from the
University of Hong Kong in November 1982.

Mr. Zhu Diwu, aged 46, was appointed to our Board on 18 February
2020 and does not hold any position with other members of our
Group. Since May 2017, he has been the co-founder, chairman and
chief executive officer of Shanghai Aihui Health Technology Co., Ltd.
(LBEERER AR AR, a company principally engaged in the
provision of information technology services to hospitals in the PRC
since May 2017. He has also been a director of Inventio Capital
Management (HK) Limited, a company principally engaged in asset
management. Mr. Zhu has been mainly responsible for supervisory
the overall management in the above two companies.

Mr. Zhu was employed at Deutsche Bank Group from July 2005 to
November 2010, where he last served as a director, equities
research analyst in the global markets division of the company.
Subsequently, Mr. Zhu was employed by Beijing Gao Hua Securities
Company Limited from November 2010 to May 2017 and served as a
managing director in the global investment research division of the
company.
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Mr. Zhu completed the study and passed the examinations of the
international MBA program co-developed by Fudan University and
Massachusetts Institute of Technology in June 2003.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ni Xingshou, aged 53, is our assistant general manager. Since
July 2015, he has been an assistant general manager of Jianzhong
Construction Technology. He is primarily responsible for the co-
management of our business operation.

Mr. Ni has over 30 years of experience in the PRC construction
industry. He participated in the construction works and served as a
quality control officer at Fujian Yongtai No. 3 Construction
Engineering Company Limited ({&8i2%& XHFFE - FZEL TR &) from
July 1986 to December 1995. He was then employed as a project
production manager at Fujian Yongtai Construction Engineering
Company Limited (f@2&xZFEEE TR AA) from January 1996 to
December 2006. From January 2007 to June 2015, he was the
production manager of the production department of Fujian
Jianzhong Labour Engineering Co., Ltd.

Mr. Ni completed an online learning course of Wuhan Polytechnic
University (23 T K&, the PRC in June 2006 and specialised his
studies in civil engineering (/K T2 5 %)

Mr. Ni obtained qualification certificates as an engineer (T #2AM)
specialising in industrial and civil engineering (LE#) from Fujian
Province Human Resources Bureau (f&&#& A=EE) in June 2001 and
as a Construction Engineering Works Grade Il Constructor (3£ T2
AR5 3ERT) from the Fujian Provincial Department of Housing and
Urban-Rural Development (f82%& (FFEMEREE) in May 2013. He has
also obtained the Certificate of Work Safety for Project In-charge
Officer in Construction Enterprises (Z£ETI ¥ EEABEALEE
EEZRABEE) from Fuzhou Urban-Rural Construction Committee
(BT 4 Z B ) since March 2019.

Mr. Shao Yonghui, aged 54, is our chief engineer of our quality and
safety department. He has been the chief engineer and general
manager of the quality and safety department (E2% &%) of
Jianzhong Construction Technology since October 2017. He is
primarily responsible for the (i) liaison with governmental
administrative units and departments in relation to construction
works; and (i) the quality and safety management of our Group.
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Mr. Shao has over 29 vyears of experience within the PRC
construction industry, specializing in areas such as construction
works technology, quality and safety management and construction
project management. He was employed at the Fujian Economic and
Technological Development Zone Construction Engineering Quality
Supervision Branch (f& /1 &€ 2 £ fig i 2 (= @2 22 T2 & S BB uh) from
September 1989 to October 2012, and was designated as (i) a civil
engineering and municipal works supervisor (tEHTHREE 8); (i)
technical officer-in-charge (¥ffT& & A); and (i) head of branch
during his period of employment. He was then employed as an
engineering officer-in-charge at Lanzhou High-Tech Development
Company Limited (B = #7528 2R AR 2 7)) from November 2012
to June 2017.

Mr. Shao completed his studies specialised in industrial and civil
construction (T 2 KAL) at Open University of Fujian (1212 /& &
EARARE), the PRC in July 1989. He also completed an online
learning course of Sichuan University (P9I X2), the PRC in June
2005, specialising his study in civil engineering management (7K T
B(EE)).

Mr. Shao obtained a qualification certificate as a senior engineer for
construction technology and management (3 L T2 & 12 54 T2
BM#E£) from Fujian Province Human Resources and Social Security
Bureau (f&82& A W& R & REEE) in May 2007.

Mr. Ma Chun Kei, aged 42, is our chief financial officer of Jianzhong
Construction Technology. Mr. Ma is also one of the joint company
secretaries. He joined the Group in August 2019 and is primarily
responsible for the financial management and company secretarial
matters.

Mr. Ma joined the Group in August 2019 and is primarily responsible
for overall financial management of the Company. Mr. Ma has over
15 years of experience in accounting, auditing and financial
management. Prior to joining the Group, he worked in an
international accounting firm and a company listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ma is a member of the Committee of Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (Zengcheng District of Guangzhou, the PRC)
(PEARBUAHEAGEMNTIERREZES).

Mr. Ma obtained a degree of bachelor of arts in accountancy from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2002. Mr. Ma
completed the examinations of Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and became an affiliate member in August 2003. He
was admitted as a member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants on 28 February 2007, and has been registered as a
certified public accountant by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since January 2008.
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Mr. Chan Sun Kwong, aged 54, joined the Company as company
secretary on 23 August 2019 and is responsible for corporate
secretarial matters of our Group.

Mr. Chan obtained a diploma of business administration from the
Hong Kong Shue Yan College (now known as Hong Kong Shue Yan
University) in July 1990. He has been registered as a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries since February
2008, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in the
United Kingdom since February 2008, the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales since July 2017, the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom since
October 1996 and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since March 2000. Mr. Chan has also been a mediator
of The Hong Kong Mediation Centre since November 2010. He has
over 25 years of experience in accounting, auditing, banking and
company secretarial fields.
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The Board hereby presents to the shareholders the corporate
governance report of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance, and strives to maintain transparent and responsible
management practices that will create long term value for the
interests of shareholders. The Board will continuously review and
improve the Group’s corporate governance practices, and
maintaining a high standard of business ethics across the
organisation.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2020, the
Company has complied with the applicable code provisions set out
in the Corporate Governance Code (“Corporate Governance Code”)
in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”), except for the deviation as mention below.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code stipulates
that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual. Mr.
Xun MH currently holds both positions. Mr. Xun MH is the founder of
the Group. He has diversified knowledge and experience in the
construction industry as well as a variety of business connection
with a network of reputable construction enterprises and contractors
in Fujian. The Board believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman
of the Board and chief executive officer in the same person will
provide strong and consistent leadership to the Company and allow
the Company to be more effective and efficient in developing long
term business strategies and execution of business plans that are in
the best interests of the Company.

In addition, as all major decisions are made in consultation with
members of the Board and relevant Board committees, and there
are three independent non-executive Directors offering independent
perspectives, the Board is of the view that there are adequate
safeguards in place to ensure sufficient balance of powers within the
Board.

The Board will continue to regularly review and monitor its corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code, and maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices of the Company.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTION
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own code of conduct
governing securities transactions by the Directors. Upon enquiry by
the Company, all Directors have confirmed that they have complied
with the required dealing standards set out in the Model Code
throughout the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2020.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The key responsibilities of the Board include formulation of the
Group’s overall strategies, the setting of management targets and
supervision of management performance. Some functions including
the monitoring and approval of material transactions, matters
involving a conflict of interest for a substantial shareholder or
Director of the Company, the approval of interim and annual results,
declaration of interim dividends and proposal of final dividends and
other disclosures to the public or regulators are reserved by the
Board for consideration and approval. Matters not specifically
reserved to the Board and necessary for the daily management and
operation of the Company are delegated to the executive Directors
and the management of the Company.

Composition

The Board of Directors consists of three Executive Directors, three
Non-executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors. A list of Directors and their respective biographies are set
out in the section “Profile of Directors and Senior Management” in
this annual report.

In compliance with the requirements set out in Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules, the Board consists of three Independent Non-executive
Directors, one of them, namely Mr. Wong Kun Kau, possesses of
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. After the Listing and up to the date
of this report, the number of Independent Non-executive Directors
represents at least one-third of the Board which is in compliance
with Rule 3.10A. As such, the Company believes that there is a
sufficient independence element in the Board to safeguard the
interests of the shareholders of the Company.
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Pursuant to Article 108(a) of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”), one-third of the Directors shall retire from
office by rotation at each annual general meeting and every Director
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every 3
years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.

Non-executive Directors

The Company has signed a letter of appointment with each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors. The commencement date of
each of the letter of appointment is 18 February 2020, for an initial
term of three vyears. Each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors has made an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the
view that all Independent Non-executive Directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
are independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines. The
Company has also signed a service agreement with each of the
Non-executive Directors on 18 February 2020, for an initial term of
three years.

Meetings and Attendance
The individual attendance records of each Director at the Board and
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=02 " EFARBRARRBFRE L
WERE MBREFAZVEIFHRERT
—R - REERFERBEEE-

FHUTES
ARBICEZBIIFATESRIIRMEK -
BHREKHERBHS2020562H5188 -+ 1]
TRYP=F BEUFRTESRELTR
AIEIBGEFHEIABUIME - ARARR - A
BREMFATERANE LmRRFEI3MGM
B RS Y ARBESINERERB
3 o ARAEIRR2020F2 418 B EHEIEMITE
ERF N RA=FHRBHE -

eERHERBR
KREEN FTHEZE2020F12 8318 HiR £

Committees’ meetings held during the period from the Listing Date {THEZEehZEe@x=mMEA L ECEE
to 31 December 2020 are set out in the table below: S
Audit Nomination Remuneration Annual  Extraordinary
Board Committee Committee Committee General General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
3¢ EKZEEE RE%EEY E237] BRE B3R
L 88 8% ZEged BEAE BRIRE
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Xun Minghong® BRI EEY 6/6  N/A RiEF 11 - 171 NATEHA
Mr. He Wenlin fA] STAR S A 6/6  NATER NATER NATER 171 N/ATER
Ms. Zheng Ping et 6/6  NATER  NATEE  NATEA 171 NATEHA
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Yang Kaifa HREEE 6/6  NATER  NATEA  NATEA 171 NATER
Mr. Zeng Guohua BEELE 6/6  NATER NATER NATER 171 N/ATiER
Mr. Xun Liangbao RAREEE 6/6  NATER  NATEA  NATEA 171 NATER
Independent Non-executive Directors BUKBITES
Mr. Sze Irons® MR AEED 6/6 2/2 111 — 171 N/ATiER
Mr. Wong Kun Kau® FER LD 6/6 212 111 — 171 N/ATER
Mr. Zhu Diwu® RE LY 6/6 2/2 1n — 11 NA RER
. Chairman of the Board - ExexF
2 Chairman of the Audit Committee 2 EZEZERXRE
3 Chairman of the Nomination Committee 3 RELZEEXR
. Chairman of the Remuneration Committee . FMEZEEER
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In respect of code provision A.2.7 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the Chairman of the Board should at least annually hold
meetings with the non-executive Directors (including Independent
Non-executive Directors) without the presence of the Executive
Directors.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2020, the
Independent Non-executive Directors had meeting with the Chairman
of the Board without the presence of other executive Directors. In
addition, the Independent Non-executive Directors could also
communicate directly at any time through other means (such as
telephone or email) to give their opinions and share their views on
the Company’s affairs.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

In compliance with the code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate
Governance Code, all Directors shall participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skill to ensure that they obtain the updated and relevant
information regarding to the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements. In December 2020, each of the Directors
have attended the training courses organised by the legal adviser of
the Company. The content of such training related to the duties of
directors and on-going obligations of listed companies.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy which sets out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board in order to enhance
the quality of its performance. The board diversity policy provides
that the Company should endeavour to ensure that our Board
members have the appropriate balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives that are required to support the execution
of its business strategy.

Pursuant to the board diversity policy, we seek to achieve Board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to professional experience, skills, knowledge, gender,
age, cultural and education background, ethnicity and length of
service. The existing members of the Board were appointed after
taking into account the aforesaid factors.

The effective implementation of the board diversity policy requires
that our Shareholders are able to judge for themselves whether the
Board as constituted is a reflection of diversity, or a gradual move to
increased diversity, on a scale and at a speed which they support.
To this end, our Shareholders will be provided with detailed
information of each candidate for appointment or re-election to the
Board through announcements and circulars published prior to
general meetings of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, the Company had a total of
nine Directors, covering different gender and age groups. In addition
to industry knowledges, members of the Board also have
professional experience in capital market, finance and corporate
governance.
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The Nomination Committee will review the board diversity policy
from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee on 18 February
2020 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, but are
not limited to, (i) assisting our Board by providing an independent
view of the effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal
control and risk management systems of our Group; (i) overseeing
the audit process and performing other duties and responsibilities as
assigned by our Board; (iii) developing and reviewing our policies and
practices on corporate governance; (iv) making recommendations to
our Board; and (v) ensuring that good corporate governance
practices and procedures are established. The Audit Committee
consists of three members, Mr. Wong Kun Kau, Mr. Zhu Diwu and
Mr. Sze Irons B.B.S., JP. Mr. Wong Kun Kau is the chairman of the
Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee held two committee meetings from the Listing
Date to 31 December 2020 with external auditor without the
presence of the executive Directors to discuss the results and
findings in connection to the interim review and annual audit of the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee on 18
February 2020 with written terms of reference in compliance with
the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are
to make recommendations to our Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure relating to all Directors and senior management
of our Group, review performance based remuneration and ensure
none of our Directors determine their own remuneration. In order to
determine the level of remuneration and fees paid to members of
the Board, market rates and factors such as each director’s
workload, performance, responsibility, job complexity and the
Group’s performance are taken into account. The Remuneration
Committee consists of four members, namely Mr. Zhu Diwu, Mr.
wong Kun Kau, Mr. Sze Irons B.B.S., JP and Mr. Xun MH. Mr. zhu
Diwu is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

No meeting was held by the Remuneration Committee from the
Listing Date to 31 December 2020.
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee on 18
February 2020 with written terms of reference in compliance with
the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to
make recommendations to our Board on the appointment of
Directors and the management of our Board succession, by
considering the factors below, among others:

a) mix of Board members that promotes diversity of background
and experience on the Board, taking into account the business
model of the Company and any specific needs;

b) educational background and competency;

C) age of potential/existing Director,

d) independence of potential/existing Board members;

e) business, technical, or specialised skills and experience of

potential/existing Board members;

f) ability, time, commitment and willingness of a new member to
serve and an existing member to continue service; and

specific value a potential/existing Board member can add to the
Board.

The Nomination Committee consists of four members, namely Mr.
Sze Irons B.B.S., JP, Mr. Wong Kun Kau, Mr. Zhu Diwu and Mr. Xun
MH. Mr. Sze Irons B.B.S., JP is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. The Nomination Committee shall report back to the
Board and keep the Board fully informed of its decisions and
recommendations, unless prohibited by applicable laws and
regulations.

The Nomination Committee held one committee meeting between

the Listing Date and 31 December 2020 to propose re-election of
retiring Directors in the 2020 annual general meeting.
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Risk Management Review Committee

The Company has established a risk management review committee
in August 2019 with written terms of reference. The members of the
risk management review committee are Mr. Xun MH., Mr. Wong Kun
Kau, Mr. Xun LB and Mr. Ma Chun Kei. Mr. Xun MH is the chairman
of the risk management review committee.

Its major functions include, (a) ensuring our Group's internal control
function in respect of budgeting to be adequately resourced; (b)
reviewing and monitoring the cash budget prepared by our Group’s
management; (c) ensuring the client acceptance procedures are
appropriately adopted to reduce potential credit risk; (d) reviewing
the ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables, and ensuring
appropriate procedures are adopted to collect the overdue
receivables; (e) ensuring we have adequate financial resources to
fulfill the capital requirement of any tender with acceptable profit
margin to us; and (f) monitoring the related party transactions to
ensure these transactions to be conducted on normal commercial
terms.

To carry out these functions, the risk management review committee
held three committee meetings from the Listing Date to 31
December 2020.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration for the audit and non-audit services provided by
the auditors to the Group during the year ended 31 December 2020
was approximately as follows:

B 3 1% B Em i A

REE2020F12 A318 IEFE - ZEEH A A
EERENEZNIEEZRG 2 FH 0w
—F:

Type of services RMB’000
RFEER ARET
Reporting accountants’ service for the Listing TR E TR RS 2,000
Annual audit services FEEZRB 2,000
Review of interim results EH R EEE 800
Internal control review NEP IS E 250
Other non-audit services H A IET % AR TS 200
5,250
DIVIDEND POLICY R EBER
The Company may declare dividends in the future after taking into  ARARIHEBAIGEAEE BRESELE - BF EK

account the results of operations, earnings, capital requirements,
general financial condition, and other factors as our Directors may
deem relevant at such time. The declaration of dividends is subject
to the discretion of our Directors and the approval of our
Shareholders (except for interim dividends) as may be necessary.
Any declaration and payment as well as the amount of dividends will
be subject to the applicable requirements of the Articles and the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020, and are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the Independent Auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the section
headed "Independent Auditor's Report”.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The joint company secretary of the Company, Mr. Ma Chun Kei and
Mr. Chan Sun Kwong, undertook no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
Their biographies are set out in the section “Profile of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report.

Mr. Ma Chun Kei is an employee of the Group while Mr. Chan Sun

Kwong is an external service provider. The primary contacts of Mr.
Chan Sun Kwong with the Company are Mr. Ma Chun Kei.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company aims to, via itS corporate governance structure,
provide all its shareholders an equal opportunity to exercise their
rights in an informed manner and allow all shareholders to engage
actively with the Company. Under the Articles, the shareholder
communication policy and other relevant internal procedures of the
Company, the shareholders of the Company enjoy, among others,
the following rights:

0

(i)

Participation at general meetings

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for direct communication between the Board and the
shareholders. The Company encourages the participation of the
shareholders through annual general meetings and other
general meetings where the shareholders meet and exchange
views with the Board, and to exercise their right to vote at
meetings. The Company shall arrange notices of meetings and
circulars containing details on proposed resolutions to be sent
to the shareholders no less than 21 days before the meeting.
At general meetings, separate resolutions are proposed on
each substantial issue, including the election of individual
Directors.

Enquiries and proposals to the Board

The Company encourages shareholders to attend shareholders’
meetings and make proposals by either directly raising
guestions on both operational and governance matters to the
Board and committees members at the general meetings or
providing written notice of such proposals for the attention of
the Company Secretary at the registered office of the
Company in Hong Kong, currently situated at Room No. 1818,
18/F, Beverley Commercial Centre, 87-105 Chatham Road
South, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong or via email to
jlanzhong_cons@fjjzkj.com.
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(iii) Convening extraordinary general meetings

The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene an
extraordinary general meeting. Extraordinary general meetings
may also be convened on the requisition of one or more
shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition
shall be made in writing to the Directors or the Company
Secretary and deposited at the registered office of the
Company in Hong Kong, currently situated at Room No. 1818,
18/F, Beverley Commercial Centre, 87-105 Chatham Road
South, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Directors for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days
of such deposit the Directors fail to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Directors shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

(iv) Procedures for proposing a person for election as
a Director

Pursuant to the Article 113 of the Articles, no person other
than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible for
election as a Director at any general meeting unless a notice
in writing of the intention to propose that person for election
as a Director and notice in writing by that person of his
willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
Company’s headquarters and principal place of business at
2002, lJinlan Building, No. 33 Zhaogiang Road, Mawei District,
Fuzhou City, Fujian Province, China or at its Hong Kong share
registrar and transfer office at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen'’s Road East, Hong Kong. The period for lodgment of the
notices required under Article 113 will commence no earlier
than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and end no later than
seven days prior to the date of such general meeting and the
minimum length of the period during which such notices to the
Company may be given will be at least seven days.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company establishes different communication channels with
investors to update them with the latest business development and
financial performance including the publication of interim and annual
reports, the publish and posting of notices, announcements and
circulars on the website of the Stock Exchange and the Company’s
website in order to maintain a high level of transparency.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Save for the adoption of the amended and restated Memorandum
and Articles of Association for the purpose of and upon the Listing,
there was no changes in the Company’s memorandum of
association and the Articles.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board reviews the internal control and risk management
systems of the Group for each financial year annually to ensure their
effectiveness and efficiency and is responsible for maintaining
effective internal control and risk management systems of the
Group. The Directors believe that effectiveness of the internal control
and risk management systems can avoid or reduce risks which can
cause loss or reputational damage to the Group. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

An internal audit function is set up to identify, monitor and manage
the key risks area associated with the business activities in relation
to the financial and operational matters/practices of the Group and
to provide its findings and any recommendations for improvement to
the Audit Committee. The internal control and risk management
systems include a defined management structure with segregation of
duties and a cash management system such as monthly
reconciliation of bank accounts. During the year 2020, we engaged
an independent internal control consultant (“Internal Control
Consultant”) to evaluate the internal control and risk management
systems. Based on the suggestions made by our Internal Control
Consultant, we take remedial measures to the deficiencies and
shortcomings of our internal control and risk management systems.
After such review, the Board considered that the Company’s
enhanced internal control and risk management systems was
adequate and effective.

With respect to internal controls for the handling and dissemination
of insider information, the Group has a strict prohibition on the
unauthorised use of confidential or inside information in the staff
handbook.

In December 2020, the Company arranged a training session
provided by our Hong Kong legal adviser to all Directors as
continuing professional trainings. Such training covered the topic of
the disclosure of inside information.
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Group are the provision of construction
service, leasing of construction machinery, equipment and tools, and
provision of sewage treatment service in mainland China. Details of
the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as required pursuant to
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) is set out in the section of “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group
are shown in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year ended 31
December 2020 using key financial performance indicators is set out
in the Five-Year Financial Summary on page 156 of this annual
report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A number of factors may affect the results and business operations
of the Group, major risks are summarized below:

i)  Non-recurrent nature of the projects

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of
construction works service. The construction services are
offered on a project-by-project basis with no long-term
commitment with any of the customers in this segment. Upon
the completion of the ongoing construction works projects, the
Group may not be engaged by the customer in subsequent
construction works projects. As such, the revenue attributable
to the construction works service is not recurring in nature.

In the event that the Group are unable to attract new
customers or secure new construction works projects from
existing customers, the Group's revenue or profit may
decrease significantly and this would adversely affecting the
business, financial condition or results of operations of the
Group.
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ii)

iii)

iv)

V)

Fluctuation in cost of materials

Since the contract value of each of the construction projects
are generally pre-determined when a project is awarded, any
substantial increase in the material cost between the time of
submission of a tender or quotation and the time when the
relevant materials are purchased will substantially increase the
material cost and may materially and adversely affect the
profitability, results of operations and financial condition of the
Group.

Availability and performance of labour
subcontractors

The Group has to engage a number of labour subcontractors
to provide the Group with a large number of construction
workers with different expertise and skill sets to carrying out
the construction works. In the event that the labour market
conditions result in shortage of labour or material increase in
labour costs, the Group may need to offer more competitive
labour subcontracting fees so as to attract and maintain a
reliable supply of construction workers. Such events could
impact the profitability and financial performance of the Group.

Delays and/or defaults of progress payments by the
customers

The Group generally receive payment from customers in stages
based on the terms of the construction contracts. Significant
portions of the operating costs, setting-up expenses associated
with a project, including labour and material costs, at the initial
stage of a project are incurred before any progress payment
made by the customers. As a result, there may be periods
during which the Group may experience net cash outflows for
a particular project as well as on an overall basis. Therefore,
the Group are constantly subject to credit and liquidity risks,
which may materially and adversely affect the profitability,
result of operations and financial position of the Group.

Macroeconomics in the PRC

Any adverse change in the economic condition in the PRC may
directly or indirectly affect the demand for the services
provided by the Group, and the business operations and
financial condition may also be materially and adversely
affected as a result.

Should there be an economic downturn or credit crisis in the
PRC for any reason, the Group may not be able to borrow new
funds, which in turn could materially and adversely affect the
results of operations and financial condition of the Group.
Moreover, apart from the access to funds, an economic
downturn or credit crisis will also affect the liquidity of the
customers. As a result, the recoverability of the Group's
account receivables may be adversely affected.
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GROUP REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 5
February 2019 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The Group completed the
Reorganisation on 21 May 2019 in preparation of the Listing on the
Stock Exchange pursuant in which the Company became the holding
company of the Group. For details of the Reorganisation, please refer
to the section headed “History, Reorganisation and Corporate
Structure” in the listing documents of the Company dated 29
February 2020 (the “Prospectus”).

The Company's shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange
since 18 March 2020.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in mainland China while the Company itself is listed on
the Stock Exchange. Our establishment and operations accordingly
shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in mainland PRC and
Hong Kong. During the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the
date of this annual report, the Group in all material aspects has
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operation of the Group. There
was no material breach or non-compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2020 and up to the date of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS, SUBCONTRACTORS AND
SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s five largest
customers in aggregate accounted for approximately 78.2% (2019:
approximately 89.6%) of the total revenue of the Group and the
largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately 54.8%
(2019: approximately 68.9%) of the total revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s five largest
subcontractors in aggregate accounted for approximately 90.8%
(2019: approximately 90.2%) of the total subcontracting cost of the
Group and the largest subcontractor of the Group accounted for
approximately 39.1% (2019: approximately 49.5%) of the total
subcontracting cost.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s five largest
suppliers in aggregate accounted for approximately 27.0% (2019:
approximately 30.5%) of the total purchases of construction
materials of the Group and the largest supplier of the Group
accounted for approximately 9.4% (2019: approximately 12.4%) of the
total purchases of construction materials.
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None of the Directors, or any of their close associates (as defined
under the Listing Rules) or any shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) has any beneficial interest in the Group's five
largest customers or suppliers or subcontractors.

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS,
SUBCONTRACTORS AND EMPLOYEES

Customers

The Group aims to maintain stable relationship with our customers
to explore potential business opportunities and is highly committed
to delivering quality services to our customers on time.

Subcontractors and Suppliers

The Group maintains a list of approved subcontractors (based on
their previous experience, skills, present work load, price quotations
and historical work quality) and suppliers (based on their prices,
quality, past performance and capacity).

Employees

The Group recognised employees as valuable assets of the Group.
The Group intends to adopt the competitive remuneration, good
welfare benefits and continuous professional training to attract and
retain appropriate and suitable personnel to serve the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no material
dispute or argument between the Group and its customers,
subcontractors, suppliers and employees.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the
Group’s financial position as at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 65 to 68 of this annual
report.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK2.08
cents (2019: nil) per ordinary share for the financial year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 156 of this
annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting (the “AGM”) of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2020 is scheduled to be held on Monday, 28
June 2021. A notice convening the AGM will be issued and
despatched to the shareholders according to the applicable law, the
Articles and the Listing Rules.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM to be
held on Monday, 28 June 2021, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Wednesday, 23 June 2021 to Monday,
28 June 2021, both days inclusive, during which no transfer of
Shares will be effected. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at
the AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’'s Hong Kong share
registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 22 June 2021.

In addition, subject to the approval of the proposed final dividend by
the shareholders at the AGM on Monday, 28 June 2021, the register
of members will be closed on Monday, 5 July 2021 for the purpose
of determining shareholders who qualify for the proposed final
dividend. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all
transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificate must be
lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar and transfer
office, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 2 July 2021.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

Charitable contributions made by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2020 amounted to approximately RMB523,000 (2019:
approximately RMB208,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements of the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the authorised share capital and issued
share capital during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out
in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the share option scheme on 18 February
2020 (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of rewarding
certain eligible persons for their past contributions and attracting and
retaining, or otherwise maintaining on-going relationships with, such
eligible persons who are significant to and/or whose contributions
are or will be beneficial to the performance, growth or success of
the Group. Subject to the earlier termination of the Share Option
Scheme in accordance with the rules thereof, the Share Option
Scheme shall remain in force for a period of ten years commencing
on 18 March 2020.
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Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include any
proposed, full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries; any Directors or proposed
Director (including non-executive Director and independent non-
executive Directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; any
direct or indirect shareholder of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries; and any consultants, business or joint venture partner,
franchisee, contractor, agent or representative of any member of our
Group, a person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support or any advisory, consultancy,
professional or other services to any member of our Group, or a
close associate of any of the foregoing persons. The maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 62,500,000
shares representing 10% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company as at the date of this annual report.

No option may be granted to any participant of the Share Option
Scheme such that the total number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted and to be granted to
that person in any 12-month period up to the date of the latest
grant exceeds 1% of the Company'’s issued share capital from time
to time.

An offer of the grant of an option shall be deemed to have been
accepted when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the
option duly signed by the grantee together with a remittance in
favour of our Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the
grant thereof is received by our Company within the period specified
in the letter containing the offer of the grant of the option. Once
such acceptance is made, the option shall be deemed to have been
granted and to have taken effect from the offer date.

The exercise price of the options is determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion and shall not be less than whichever is the
highest of:

(@) the nominal value of a share;

(b)  the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheets on the offer date; and

(c)  the average closing price of a share as stated in the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five Business
Days (as defined in the Listing Rules) immediately preceding
the offer date.

As at the date of this annual report, no option was granted under
the Share Option Scheme.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note
25 to the consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries redeemed, purchased or sold any of the listed
securities of the Company.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Shares.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Directors’ Interest in the Company and Associated
Corporation

As at 31 December 2020, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which were required (i)
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
referred to therein, or (i) pursuant to Model Code contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Long position in ordinary shares of the Company

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest
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Mr. Xun MH Interest in a controlled corporation® 315,308,375 50.45%
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Mr. Xun LB Interest in a controlled corporation® 46,194,125 7.39%
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Notes:

Save

The Company is directly held as to 299,156,250 shares and 16,152,125
shares by MHX Investment Limited (“MHX Investment BVI”) and lJingH
Investment Limited (“JingH Investment BVI"), respectively. MHX
Investment BVI is wholly-owned by Mr. Xun MH. JingH Investment BVI
is owned as to 36.99% by Mr. Xun MH. Mr. Xun MH is deemed to be
interested in the aggregate number of shares that are held by MHX
Investment BVI and JingH Investment BVI under the SFO.

The Company is directly held as to 46,194,125 shares by Furi Investment
Limited (“Furi Investment BVI"). Furi Investment BVI is owned as to
42.01% by Mr. Xun LB. Mr. Xun LB is deemed to be interested in the
number of Shares that are held by Furi Investment BVI under the SFO.

The percentage represents the number of shares of the Company
interested divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as
at 31 December 2020.

as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the

Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or

short

positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the

Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register of the Company
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

B3

1. AND A D BIHAMHX Investment Limited
(TMHX Investment BVI]) &JingH
Investment Limited ([ &8 R EBVI]) E#%¥F
B299,156,2500% A% 15 £2.16,152,125% f% 15 °
MHX Investment BVIR & R4 42 &
B o BB EBVIHEBAL L EHHF36.99% °
RIBEEHFRIPERN  BRLEERRER
MHX Investment BVI X & /&% & BVIFT# Y A%
DB RS -

2. AN FEFU Investment Limited ([ @318 E
BVI)) B 46,194,125 1% 15 © &IH1RE
BVIERAT R B A A 42.01% © BIFES K
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares in the

Company other than Director

As at 31 December 2020, so far as our Directors or chief executive
of our Company are aware, the following persons (other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company) had interests or a short
positions in shares or underlying shares of the Company, as
recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under

Section 336 of the SFO:

Name of Shareholder

E#&®

Number of
ordinary shares

Capacity/Nature of Interest held/interested

RESUNETEZERRRADARMDH

2020F12 4310 - BA R A ESE R FET
BABME - WAL (RRREEFREET
BABRRSN) AR A E A7 S AR R AR 10
BIRERE K B E 60 5B 336 1R AL SN B A
NAMTFEECMHERIORR

Percentage of
shareholding*

FiisRERER

BREE R B EEME VEBEREE FRESL
MHX Investment BVI Beneficial owner® 299,156,250 47 .87%

EREAAO
Ms. Song Dongling Interest of spouse® 315,308,375 50.45%
REL L+ i B A
CV Construction Capital Limited Beneficial owner@ 102,937,500 16.47%
BRIERERNBR AT EREAAQ
Conch Venture Development Limited  Interest in a controlled corporation® 102,937,500 16.47%
HIZBIEBERBR AT REEGEB B REZ?
Yijiang International Limited Interest in a controlled corporation® 102,937,500 16.47%
CIEEEBRRAA] REZZGEB R
Shanghai Yijiang Investment Limited Interest in a controlled corporation® 102,937,500 16.47%
LEAXIREBRAR REEGEB B REZ?
Anhui Conch Venture Investment Interest in a controlled corporation® 102,937,500 16.47%
ZHRBBAIZERE REEGEB B REZ?
Furi Investment BVI Beneficial owner® 46,194,125 7.39%
BRI EBVI E=mEAAQ
Ms. Leng Yan Interest of spouse® 46,194,125 7.39%
R+ Ao (B
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Notes:

1. The Company is directly held as to 299,156,250 shares and 16,152,125
shares by MHX Investment BVI and JingH Investment BVI, respectively.
MHX Investment BVI is wholly-owned by Mr. Xun MH. JingH Investment
BVI is owned as to 36.99% by Mr. Xun MH. Mr. Xun MH is deemed to
be interested in the same number of shares that are held by MHX
Investment BVI and JingH Investment BVI under the SFO. Ms. Song
Dongling is the spouse of Mr. Xun MH and is therefore deemed to be
interested in the same number of shares in which Mr. Xun MH is
interested under the SFO.

2. The Company is directly held as to 102,937,500 shares by CV
Construction Capital Limited (“CV Construction BVI"). CV Construction
BVI is wholly-owned by Conch Venture Development Limited (“Conch
Venture Development”). Conch Venture Development is wholly-owned
by Yijiang International Limited. Yijiang International Limited is wholly-
owned by Shanghai Yijiang Investment Limited, which in turn is
wholly-owned by Anhui Conch Venture Investment. Accordingly, each
of Conch Venture Development, Yijiang International Limited, Shanghai
Yijiang Investment Limited and Anhui Conch Venture Investment is
deemed to be interested in the same number of shares that are held
by CV Construction BVI under the SFO.

3. The Company is directly held as to 46,194,125 shares by Furi Investment
BVI. Furi Investment BVI is owned as to 42.01% by Mr. Xun LB. Mr.
Xun LB is deemed to be interested in the number of shares that are
held by Furi Investment BVI under the SFO. Ms. Leng Yan is the
spouse of Mr. Xun LB and is therefore deemed to be interested in the
same number of shares in which Mr. Xun LB is interested under the
SFO.

* The percentage represents the number of shares of the Company
interested divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as
at 31 December 2020.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no person, other
than the Directors, whose interests are set out in the section
headed “Directors’ Interest in the Company and Associated
Corporation” above, had registered an interest or short position in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required
to be recorded pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

B3

1. RAFDRIHAMHX  Investment BVIN &i&
% EBVIHE E # 5299,156,250 % I8 15 &
16,152,125 P& 15 - MHX  Investment BVI
RAERAGCEZENS - @EREBVIRAER
KSR HEHEE 36.99% © IRIEE FH KBS &) -
BB AR ARMHX  Investment  BVI
M&BREBVIFTIEMAREE MR H T ES
B REB LT AERATENEE -
I IRBFES LEEGR - EERARE R
AEEHEERENEREENRNDTPIESE

><
fm ©

2. RAFIREEIEREABRAR (EAIER
BVI]) B & # 5 102,937,5000% i {7 ° /& &l i
EBVIHBIZAIEHRARA A ([FIEAIER
BN2EHE - BRAXERACIERA
RAB2EHEA  CIBEEERARELE
CIREERARZEHE M LEBHCIE
BEERARBZRESRAERELEHE -
Eit - BEBEFESRBEGKD - GIRAI 5
B XIEBRERAR - EBSIRERR
RAIRZHBRAERESBHEEARGE
ERBVIEFAMMERE MR EE R -

3. ARFAEREKREBVIEERH46,194,1250%
B -@mBEBVIRBARELEEHESR
42.01% ° RIBFFMPEGN  HRELLE
BWAR BB IREBVIF RV B B R
B RMUTRARARBELEENEKSE
b REESEBEGEN - HREARER

BRAGAZERNIEREE MR DhERRZ

ZS o

B

* Z BN IEARRREA R Z B BRI
A2 AR20209F12 8310 2 B2 & T
=[]

B EXXCPT#REE SN - R20205F 124318 - B R
EXEERARB LB EE Oz | — 6
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from the Share Option Scheme as set out in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” above, at no time during the year
under review was the Company or any of its holding companies or
subsidiary, a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

During the year under review, other than the Share Option Scheme
as set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” above, the
Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreement.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law, Cap.
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands, amounted to approximately RMB182.9 million (31 December
2019: Nil).

COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors confirm that none of the controlling shareholders of
the Company (as defined in the Listing Rules) or the Directors and
their respective close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) is
interested in any business apart from the business operated by the
Group which competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly,
with the Group's business at any time during the year ended 31
December 2020.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2020 are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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EXTEHRE

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2020 and up to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Xun Minghong (Chairman)
Mr. He Wenlin
Ms. Zheng Ping

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yang Kaifa
Mr. Zeng Guohua
Mr. Xun Liangbao

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Sze Irons, B.B.S., J.P.
Mr. Wong Kun Kau
Mr. Zhu Diwu

Pursuant to Article 108(a) of the Articles, one-third of the Directors
shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general meeting
and every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every 3 years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considered
all of its Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the guidelines as set out under the Listing Rules.

TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions
and Related Party Transactions” in this annual report, there was no
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to
the business of the Group to which the Company, its holding
Ccompany, or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company or his connected entities had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2020, nor
was there any transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance for the provision of services to the Company or any of
its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or any of its subsidiaries for the year.

S
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in notes 7 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out in the section of “Profile of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes organised by the PRC municipal and provincial government
authorities for the Group’s eligible employees in the PRC, and
operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme for the employees in
Hong Kong.

Particulars of these retirement plans are set out in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EMOLUMENTS POLICIES

Details of the Group’s emolument policies are set out in the
paragraph headed “Employees and remuneration policies” in the
section of “Management Discussion and Analysis”.

The Directors’ fees and other emoluments are determined by the
Board with reference to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Company as well as the
prevailing market conditions. Details of the remuneration of the
Directors of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company,
which were not a contract of service with any Director or any
person engaged in the full-time employment of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

@ JIANZHONG CONSTRUCTION DEVELOPMENT LIMITED  Annual Report 2020

EERBEK

REEBRRBFARE LEREEZEREENE
= BEEARBRLRBEAL  BUEARLQF
AR —FAEE CEERERIN RIEALD

EEROBERSHMA L 895 M

HE2020F12ANHILFE - EERAKE
hasEEFHALOFMEBRREAME
WARMIET I8 ©

ESKEREBEABNERFE

ARAEENSREBABNEERENB
BN AFRIEERSNEBABEE| 0 -

BARETE

AEEGAEESAEOTEERS®EP
B I AT 4 B AL A 0 7 E 4 OB (KB
S Y ABEBRERHDERBIEATES

AHEl -

FZERAREENFITHN A MWK
220

BN BUR
REEOHHBREERN [ ERE A RED
17— R (R B R H BB — & -

EXEHENEMMEMETS2REETRY
BERKARARRBAZEALERTRERE
B E2020F12A3NH ILFE - KAAFREEH
FMFBEN R M B RRMET -

EEEWN

Epy MBI REEEBAL AR BRI
ABEEHHEBOERRITRAL  TEH
ANYFRAMEFRAAVET2RIEES
ST RB A -



—
e

S
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EXTEHRE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken by the
Group in its normal course of business are set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements. The related party transaction
which constituted connected transaction under the Listing Rules, and
is subject to the reporting, announcement and annual review
requirements Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are set out below:

Tenancy agreements with Conch Venture Henghai Investment
(Zhuhai) Co., Ltd. (“Conch Venture Henghai”).

Conch Venture Henghai is wholly owned by Anhui Conch Venture
Investment Co. Ltd.* (ZBUBIZEIZ¥IREFREE A A)), a substantial
shareholder of the Company as at the date of this report. Conch
Venture Henghai is considered an associate of Anhui Conch Venture
Investment and a connected person of our Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Mr. Yang Kaifa (#5B8%) is a director of both
Conch Venture Henghai and the Company as at the date of this
report.

On 22 March 2019, Guangdong Haizhijian Engineering entered into a
tenancy agreement with Conch Venture Henghai in relation to a
property in Zhuhai, Guangdong to support the business development
of the Group in the region. Details of the tenancy agreement are set
out below:

HEXZRBBLIXS

AEEREREXEBBREPETHEARB S
RBNFIBEEN G A M BHRRME287R - R
BETRABREER S MRIE ETRRNE
VUAZEETHE RERFEENRENE
R BN T

EEARBREGKB)ERAA(EAEK
BRI HE R

RAHEEH  BAREALARATEZMRR
ZRSBBAERERFRETRARZEHRE -
BREBELETHRAUNEUAE - BARSERE/LH
BRRIXKRENHEARRNRANBEAL °
RABEEH HHELEERBIREERA
NEIMES °

R2019F3 8220 - ERBZETIREEAIE
BREREWETH —ANET Y EERZ
UXBAEEEZEEN KRR - HEW
RAFREEIMT

Lessor Tenant Property Term Monthly rent
A A " VUES 8 5 A
Conch Venture Henghai Guangdong Haizhijian Office From 1 April 2019 to RMB149,500
Engineering Technology 31 March 2020 (Note)

Co., Ltd.
BEIEE BREzETEREK M= 2019418 ZE AR
BERAT] 20203 A31H 149,5007C
(B E)

Note:

In view of the adverse impact bought by the pandemic, Conch Venture
Henghai granted a 50% rent concession to the Group. Based on the
supplemental agreement dated 31 December 2020, the monthly rental charge
was decreased from RMB299,000 to RMB149,500 for the entire term of the
agreement.

The transaction contemplated under the above tenancy agreement is
subject to the reporting, announcement and annual review
requirements, but are exempted from the circular and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

GEE

ERRBEEROTFZE  SaEEANEEET
S50% & EE - IRIEBHA2020F 12 A31 BT
g - BE 2R BB AR 299,0007TH 4>
= AR #149,5007T °

RIEEMRBNE VAT - LI HEHHIE T 5
ETHNRSEETHRE  RENFEEHR
E o MERERA S B ST K MBS ORI EIRE
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Save for disclosed above, the related party transactions which
constituted connected transactions under the Listing Rules, are
exempted from the reporting, announcement, annual review and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” of this annual report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, based on the information that is
publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Directors, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Articles, applicable laws and regulations, every
Director shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
and profits of the Company against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them may incur
or sustain in the execution of their duties in their offices. Such
permitted indemnity provision has been in force throughout the year
under review. The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of
the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

The Group is committed to support environmental protection to
ensure business development and sustainability. The Group
implements green office practices to reduce the consumption of
energy and natural resources. These practices include the use of
energy-saving lightings and recycled papers, reduce energy
consumption by switching off idle lightings, computers and electrical
appliances and the use of environmentally friendly products
whenever possible.

A separate environmental, social and governance report is expected
to be published on the Stock Exchange's website and the
Ccompany’s website no later than three months after the publication
of this annual report in accordance with the requirement under the
Listing Rules.
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BEEEeRE

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD REHESH

There were no significant events after the reporting period of the SR&EHIEAEBEZ LS KEM -
Group.

AUDITOR ¥ EEm

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 #EHZ2020F12A31H IEFENLEE M BRE
December 2020 have been audited by KPMG, who shall retire and, DEZERH S EEMEK  HEREW
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for FAEENMBEEZIERE - AQRERERE
the re-appointment of KPMG as auditor of the Company is to be REBFEASIEZRER NEEESHS

proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting. STRD S5 AT R AR 1 B AZ SRR o
By order of the Board EEEED

Xun Minghong TE

Chairman HBA

Fujian, 29 March 2021 B2 > 202193 A29H

ETERBRRERDLE —ToRFEFR e



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
RS ETE &

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Jianzhong Construction Development Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jianzhong
Construction Development Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 65 to 155, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2020, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2020 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auwditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in
the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

matters were addressed

AR EE R
FREBAFSFHEHERERMNEXHE  RR
BAHRA M BRRNBARASEENEH
EUEREERMBABRESVBHRERNL
HAERRETREN - RATSHELS
RRHERNER -

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.

Revenue recognition for construction contracts

Refer to notes 3(a) and 15 to the consolidated financial
Statements and the accounting policies in notes 1(k) and
1(5)(i).

The Key Audit Matter
BEESTEER

The Group recorded revenue from the provision of
construction service, including foundation works,
formwork and scaffolding works, construction of sewage
treatment infrastructure and other construction works, in
mainland China totalling RMB1,278.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

BHZE2020F12ANBILFE - EEEERTEAMMIEH
BERY  2EMETRR  EREMNFEIR  5KER
EMSMEINEMEETR SR RHARE
1,278 8B H T °

Contract revenue is recognised progressively over time
using the output method, based on direct measurements
of the value of contract work performed, which is mainly
reflected by the progress certificates issued by
customers. The customer will provide final account when
the whole project is completed and may have
adjustments on the amount recognised to date according
to the actual surveys of work performed at completion.
EHREEFMATENIRNEREENE  HARBLE
BERERAERR  ZEEZTEZERBAERPEENEEZEH
F-EEBETKE B BRESKERE - BB E
EREHETKEATENERASLEER AIFTHERH
SREELHFE -

We identified revenue recognition as a key audit matter
because revenue is one of the key performance
indicators of the Group and therefore there is an inherent
risk of manipulation of the timing of recognition of
revenue by management to meet specific targets or
expectations.

BN SERHAARENZE  REAKRGERE &
SENBAREVERZ - METSLREEBREINETE
BiZsk A MRl sRRNENESRR -

BEASHNBER
R A B R AN 3(a) R AT 15 R M5 10k) R KT 1(S)
()H B9 251 I °

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BN EFNTEEZSE

Our audit procedures to assess revenue recognition for
construction contracts included the following:

PR EEES NN ERTETHNETIEFB2EN
T&IE :

o assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls
over the contract revenue recognition processes;

J HhE WS TERIET TP E AR EIERRE
AT B AR

o inspecting a sample of contracts with customers,
to identify key terms and conditions, and to
assess the Group’s revenue recognition criteria
with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards;

J HEREREPIIVANELD - UHBREZ B RIE
f WBERTEHEAORETE ESENK
i M R AR LE

o comparing the contract revenue recognised for
construction projects during the year, on a
sample basis, with progress certificates issued by
customers,

J MR FARERIER BRNE NN EEEPHFE
B HE S RE BRAE TSI L

S B @
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBENRE

Revenue recognition for construction contracts BESHKBER

Refer to notes 3(a) and 15 to the consolidated financial — £ (i4m5& BIFER 2171 3(a) R AT aE 15 K% Bt 1(k) R A1 aE 1(S)

statements and the accounting policies in notes 1(k) and — ()FE) & 5B & °

1(s)(i).
The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
HEESEER HMNENATEEZER

@ JIANZHONG CONSTRUCTION DEVELOPMENT LIMITED  Annual Report 2020

conducting site visits, on a sample basis, to
observe the progress of individual projects and
discussing with project managers or site
personnel about the physical status of the
respective project with reference to the agreed
timetable and the Group’s accounting records;
HEETERE  UBREREENHEE - 12
BpEREEE SSEMZETERMEEE LB
A B RBEIEENEMIBR

comparing the certified amounts in the final
accounts, for contracts completed during the
year, with the contract revenue recognised to
date, to assess whether adjustments in the final
accounts, if any, have been reflected in the
Group’s accounting records; and
REABTREL - HRKRE PHRE S FHEE
ZEAIFTERNE QW aREITHE Y - AR &R ER
BERHRE (WA RERME BESEMETLHK
FoRk

obtaining confirmations, on a sample basis, from
major customers of the Group to confirm
amounts certified for selected construction
projects during the year and, for unreturned
confirmations, performing alternative procedures
by comparing details with contracts, and other
underlying project related documentation.

Hm BESREFZEXFPERERE  UERFEA
BTREEHENERSRE  UHARTERENTH
2y - BIEEL KRR E A KA MIE#EIE
B ABRE 1 -



Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBERE

Expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, bills
receivable and contract assets

Refer to notes 16 and 2é(a) to the consolidated financial
Statements and the accounting policies in note 1()i).

The Key Audit Matter
HEESEE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s gross trade
receivables, bills receivable and contract assets
amounted to RMB1,582.7 million, against which an
allowance of RMB163.8 million for expected credit losses
(ECLs) was recorded. The Group's trade receivables, bills
receivable and contract assets mainly arose from
provision of construction service.

M20205612H31H - ESEEZREMKRIE ERZEER
BREERBEARARK18278E L Bt iEMBHEER
BREBSHEAARKI138EETL . EEEMNESENR
HIE - BUEBREHNEETZRBIREREERT -

The Group measures the loss allowance at an amount
equal to lifetime ECL based on estimated loss rates for
each category of receivables grouped according to the
shared credit risk characteristics. The estimated loss rates
take into account the ageing of trade receivable
balances, the repayment history of the Group's
customers, current market conditions, customer-specific
conditions, and forward-looking information. Such
assessment involves significant management judgement
and estimation.
ESEEENBUEERRISENSHEEWRRIENTERELR
X RBEENREAGFERNEREEBINSETEE
KA c MHBAXZRE FRINFIAE SRR - BE5E
EPWMERREL ERImMEER  BPEEE LA
BR o Rt R E XK B EE AIE A G5 o

We identified the ECL for trade receivables, bills
receivable and contract assets as a key audit matter
because determining the level of the loss allowance
requires the exercise of significant management
judgement which is inherently subjective.
AREREENBE P REANEREAE  BAFEE
BAEEN  BMEEZEKFIE BREERENEE
MBI BB AHA ABREETEE -

BSBEHE BUEBRRANEERSEEAL
1

LRGBS I BHENE 16 R 260) RIS 100F 498
BB -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAMETFNAEEZSE

Our audit procedures to assess the ECL allowance for
trade receivables, bills receivable and contract assets
included the following:

BT HEZEKFE BREBREGVEEEHREE
BREGHNEFTEFBEATEIA

o obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls relating to
credit control, debt collection and credit loss
allowance calculation;

J TREEERBRZES - EFKRE REEBRERT
FHEMA R AEIES - WA EH R - ITAE
TREMM

o evaluating the Group's policy for estimating the
credit loss allowance with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting

standards;
o Z2BBITLFEANEX - FE BEBEEEE
BREENEETBUR

o assessing whether items in the trade receivables
ageing report were categorised in the appropriate
ageing bracket by comparing individual items
therein with relevant underlying documentation,
on a sample basis;

J S & 5 FE WK IA AR e 7 AT i 7R Ay B8 {18 B £
MR SIS ME SO EATEL RS - FEAE R IHE REH
HENEE N RIRIES

o obtaining an understanding of the key parameters
and assumptions of the expected credit loss
model adopted by the management, including the
basis of segmentation of the trade receivables,
bills receivable and contract assets based on
credit risk characteristics of customers and the
historical default data in management’s estimated
loss rates;

J TRERERMGEEERRAPTERNBRSE
kBHR PREEEENEFEERRBEHEES
JEWGRIA - BIREB RGN EEEIT O HERER
NREEEEHIBAERBEEHNELENER

S B @
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Expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, bils EBEZEWRE EBUREBRAAVNEEFEHNFERX

receivable and contract assets 'E‘[ﬁ

Refer to notes 16 and 2é(a) to the consolidated financial 4R E BT IR M 5F 16 1 [ a£26(a) R BT i 100)() 19 &
Statements and the accounting policies in note 1()i). ghB?gé’

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
BARETSE RN FTNMMERZESE
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assessing the appropriateness of management’s
estimates of loss allowance by examining the
information used by management to derive such
estimates, including testing the accuracy of the
historical default data and evaluating whether the
historical loss rates are appropriately adjusted
based on current market conditions, customer-
specific conditions and forward-looking
information; and
BRAREEEERMNMELBRMGETNER - 2558
AELENERNERYE  FEHELBAXEEE
EIRBE TSR - BRPEEERRAEEER
ETRAE TEEEEURERERGBTNES
5 &

re-performing the calculation of the loss allowance
as at 31 December 2020 based on the Group's
credit loss allowance policy.

ER BESEEEEBAERTIROSTBERENT
HH2020F 12 A31 H W B K &4 -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBERE

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

e B MR R AR B R BAS
iOREPEN
EETYHMERAR - HOERRETR
REFANZHEL BT RERAMBER
RRBMOZBARE -

BPEEEMBEHRENBERY NMRERME
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HYEERE A ©
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TREBEBEMEES  HElLBRE+  ZREME
BREEGEMBBRIBMAERIERED
FTTROBERFEEAEBREUTEFEE
REERBGRHIIER

ERBMEHITHIIE  MREMIBF/EA
EEFEERHERRL  HMFEREZE
BE-HEETH HPPREEMAMRSE -

EENGREVMBRRARENEE

EXRAERBERESMASEMNER
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBENRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and

the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

@ JIANZHONG CONSTRUCTION DEVELOPMENT LIMITED  Annual Report 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBERE

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBENRE

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Liu Hin Pan.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

29 March 2021

@ JIANZHONG CONSTRUCTION DEVELOPMENT LIMITED  Annual Report 2020

EBEZZESBBNFHET  RMAETH
LEFH ARG AR B RRNBTRAEE
W@k B =T FH - R EZBENRE
FHIMELEER  BRIFEREIRTANAH
BREELFER EBRFEENBERLT MR
EEBRERMRETBAREZREKNE
H&REEBELNRRNE - HPURETE
EHRERBEBZEHR -

HARBI ZHERENRITHBEAEAZ
B RRE, °

EERE BB
HESED
EBPIR
T B 10557
KFRESHE

202143 A 298



ey

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi) ZZE20205F12 A31 B IEFE (AAREEFIR)

2020 2019
2020 20194
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR® TR ARET T
Revenue W &= 3 1,278,769 1,578,218
Cost of sales SHE B (990,338) (1,224,195)
Gross profit ER 288,431 354,023
Other net income H b F U A 4 10,176 15,608
Administrative expenses TBRAX (93,154) (118,908)
Impairment loss on assets arising from HEFEHMEEAEE
contracts with customers H R (B E5 18 26(a) (114,767) (20,808)
Other operating expenses HMhg gz (3,179) (4,230)
Profit from operations £ R 87,507 225,685
Finance cost A& B AN 5(a) (18,458) (17,363)
Profit before taxation A1 FIE 5 69,049 208,322
Income tax Fri5 %t 6(a) (9,299) (29,082)
Profit for the year B A5 59,750 179,240
Earnings per share BRER 9
Basic and diluted (RMB) EARES (AREK) 0.10 0.38

The notes on pages 71 to 155 form part of these financial

Statements.

F7VE1S5 B MM B %M MR A — B

)

o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meESEREMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi) ZZ2020F 12 A31HIEFE (AAREEFIR)

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETIT
Profit for the year ®FANMNE® | 59,750 | . 179,240
Other comprehensive income for the year FREMZEKE
tem that may be reclassified subsequently to Hig A gt BT DI Z B
profit or l0ss: HIEE :
Exchange differences on translation of financial 2%/ B A3t LA S 2 75
statements of operations outside mainland B IS SRk B DE X = RE
China (1,122) 4
Other comprehensive income for the year ~~~ FAHMEEKE | azy) A
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEKRRAHE 58,628 179,244

The notes on pages 71 to 155 form part of these financial F71E1558 MM K ZEYTHEHRERMN — L6
statements. 2 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B R R

At 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi) 7#2020F128318 (AAREZITR)

2020 2019
20204 20194
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR® T AREF T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - WE k&G 10 477,276 397,232
Intangible assets mpEE 11 3,618 702
Receivables under service concession RIS L HEE T /Y
arrangement JE W kT8 17 29,201 32,909
Deferred tax assets FEIEFRIBE E 23(b) 1,219 4,031
Other non-current assets HEMIEREEE 12 25,108 10,724
536,422 445,598
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 14 28,268 26,561
Contract assets BREE 15 581,612 490,201
Trade and other receivables B 5 Ik H e Y 5k I8 16 903,243 476,509
Receivables under service concession RS ELEEETH
arrangement JiE Us 3k TE 17 6,448 17,436
Restricted bank balances PR IR 1T AL g 18 17,042 2,727
Cash and cash equivalents RekRESEEY 19 200,884 102,968
S R 1,737,497 | 1,116,402
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 N E fth e IR 20 753,934 581,359
Contract liabilities EHAEE 15 5,720 13,322
Loans and borrowings BERRER 21 296,953 57,256
Current taxation BN EA R 18 23(a) 9,190 12,238
R R 1,065,797 | 664,175
Net current assets MEBEEFREE 671,700 452,227

ETERBRRERLE —ToTFEFR @



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

At 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi) 72020128318 (AAREFIR)

2020 2019

20204 20194

Note RMB’000 RMB’'000

B 7 AR¥T T AR®ET T

Total assets less current liabilities HEERABER 1,208,122 897,825
Non-current liabilities kRBEE

Loans and borrowings ERRBER 21 89,541 64,492

Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEAE 23(b) 2,661 —

Other non-current liabilities HasEmEadE 24 22,575 9,201

114,777 73,693

NET ASSETS EEFE 1,093,345 824,132
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EAXRFHE

Share capital LN 25(c) 5,671 —

Reserves e 1,087,674 824,132

TOTAL EQUITY B 1,093,345 824,132

& The balance represents an amount less than RMB1,000. * REHRESETEARE,0007T -

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on M202143A29H & £ & #t 4 I 1 1% 1 %

29 March 2021. T
Xun Minghong He Wenlin

HRA 1] ST AR

Director Director

EZE EZE

The notes on pages 71 to 155 form part of these financial F71E1558 MM K ZEYTHEHRERMN — L6
statements. 2 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi) # 22020612 A31H IEFE (AARESITR)

Share Share Capital Statutory Special  Exchange Other Retained

capital  Premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total

BE  RHEE EARE  OAERE  FERE  ERRE  HOHEE  RENE st

Note RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
iFE ARBTT ARMTT ARETR ARMTH ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Balance at 1 January 2019 R2019E1B1BHNES 148,000 - 184,825 23,768 6,903 - - 193,492 556,988
Changes in equity for 2019: B2019FHERRE
Proft for the year ERFIE — - - - - - — 179240 179240
Other comprehensive income E2EkE 25(e)(iv) = = = = = 4 = = 4
Total comprehensive income 2ENREE = = = = = 4 = 179,240 179,244
Appropriation to statutory reserve BB E AT R 25(e)(ii) = = = 21,296 = = = (21,296) =
Transfer to special reserve ERZERER 25(e)(ii = = = = 4,833 = = (4,833) =
Capital injection from equity ERRRTE

shareholders 25(e)i) 20,450 — 71,575 — - — - — 92,025
Issuance of new shares ESAEl 25(e)() - - - - - - - - -
Elimination of capital upon ERGRALE

Reorganisation 25(e)(v) (168,450) = = = = = 164,325 = (4,125)
Balance at 31 December 2019 R2019E12 A31H %2020

and 1 January 2020 E1A1ANES —* — 256400 45,064 11,736 4 164325 346,603 824,132
Changes in equity for 2020: 20205 EHED -
Profit for the year ERFIE - - - — - — - 59,750 59,750
Other comprehensive income E2EkE 25(6)(iv) — — - - - (1122) - - (1,122)
Total comprehensive income 2ENEEE - - - - - (1,122 - 59,750 58,628
Appropriation to statutory reserve BB E AT R 25(e)(ii) - — - 8,958 - - - (8,958) -
Transfer to special reserve ERZERERE 25(e)(ii - - - - 3,057 - - (3,057) -
Capitalisation issue AR 4,246 (4,246) - - - - - - -
Issuance of ordinary shares upon ~ RERAREERHT

initial public offering, net of LEk NBLETER

listing expenses 1,425 209,160 - - - - - - 210,585
Balance at 31 December 2020 202012831 AK4 8 5671 204914 256,400 54,022 14,793 (1,118) 164,325 394338 1,093,345
* The balances represent amounts less than RMB1,000. * ZERBETEIE ARKE,0007T °

The notes on pages 71 to 155 form part of these financial SF71E1558 MM EEKZ ST HHRERMN—E6
statements. g2

o
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Expressed in Renminbi) ;2202012 8318 IEFE (AARETIIR)

2020 2019
20204 20194
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Ff 5 AR® TR ARMET T
Operating activities ReEER
Cash (used in)/generated from operations #&4 (FrA) /ELHIEE  190) (207,960) 138,080
Income tax paid ERFER (6,874) (57,644)
Net cash (used in)/generated from REEE (FTA),BEH
operating activities RE&FH (214,834) 80,436
Investing activities REEE
Payments for the purchase of property, BEWE MELXE
plant and equipment NES (131,481) (83,818)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HE®E « BE KRG
and equipment Fr 1S I8 18,984 5,735
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash WM B A A - H0BRFT
acquired WHE R IR & 19(f) (3,300) —
Net cash used in investing activities REZTHFMAREFHE (115,797) (78,083)
Financing activities Eﬂﬁ?ﬁiﬂ)
Proceeds from new bank loans FTERITERFTS IR 19(c) 282,618 153,210
Repayment of bank loans Laﬁfﬁﬁﬁm 19(c) (62,477) (160,751)
Payments of lease liabilities HEBENK 19(c) (859) (1,691)
Payment for acquisition of equipment by B B &5 HifT &
instalments 19(c) (35,563) (28,779)
Payments for capital element of ERERRPELENRTE
obligations arising from sale and B & AN EB D - 5K
leaseback transactions 19(c) (2,411) (9,425)
Proceeds from borrowings under sale and &£ B3 5 e 5K
leaseback transactions Fr 1S 208 19(c) 50,000 =
Interests paid EFH 8 19(c) (16,746) (17,051)
Capital injections from equity E Hx?&éf
shareholders — 92,025
Gross proceeds from initial public offering & IX AR & 5 5KI8
) 235,041 =
Payment of listing expenses EEBERAR (19,928) (4,415)
Transactions with shareholders during the E4AHIMEE RN 5
reorganisation 19(c) — (4,125)
Advances from related parties A B 75 B K 19(c) — 25,972
Repayments to related parties M) Bt 5 38 X 19(c) — (38,127)
Net cash generated from financing RMETHEENRE TR
activities 429,675 6,843
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents R&RREEEY
I hnFEEE 99,044 9,196
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R1B1HHNEER
ReZEE % 19(a) 102,968 93,772
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EXZFH (1,128) =
Cash and cash equivalents at R12A31EHMNEEZR
31 December BHEEEY 19(a) 200,884 102,968
The notes on pages 71 to 155 form part of these financial 571% 1558 MM @R Z SIS MA R — 26
statements. paNks
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 35 R AR Y R

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BHFTIEIN - HAAREFIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1

(@)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“"HKASS") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSS
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group. Note 1(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current accounting period reflected in
these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 5 February 2019 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Cayman Islands Companies Law
CAP. 22. The Company is an investment holding
company and has not carried on any business since the
date of its incorporation save for the group
reorganisation in preparation for the listing
(“Reorganisation”). The Company’s shares were listed on
the Main Board on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 18 March 2020. The
Group is principally engaged in the provision of
construction service, leasing of construction machinery,
equipment and tools, and provision of sewage treatment
service in mainland China.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBFTIESN - HIAARESIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

1

(b)

(0

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), rounded to the nearest thousand. RMB
is the functional currency and the reporting currency for
the Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC. The
functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
Dollars. The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in Note 2.

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA to these financial
statements for the current accounting period:

. Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a Business
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Notes to the Financial Statements
b E e
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BHFTIEIN - HAAREFIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

1

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of the
amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify the definition of a business and
provide further guidance on how to determine whether a
transaction represents a business combination. In
addition, the amendments introduce an optional
“concentration test” that permits a simplified assessment
of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is an
asset rather than business acquisition, when substantially
all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is
concentrated in a single identifiable asset or Group of
similar identifiable assets.

The Group has applied the amendments prospectively to
transactions for which the acquisition date is on or after
1 January 2020. In particular, the Group has elected to
apply the concentration test to an acquisition during the
year (see Note 11).

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBFTIESN - HIAARESIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Subsidiaries (Continued)

1

(e)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within equity,
separately from equity attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or 10ss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 1(i)(ii)).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
Note 1(i)(ii)):

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K SBFTHESN -

1

BAANRESIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

()

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

e Machinery and equipment 3-10 years
e Motor vehicles 3-10 years
e Tools 3-10 years
e Electronic equipment 3-5 years
o Right-of-use assets (Note 1(h)(i)) 1-5 years
¢ | easehold improvements 3 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses (see Note 1(i)(ii)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible
assets with finite useful lives are amortised from the date
they are available for use and their estimated useful lives
are as follows:

e Software
e Licenses

10 years
3-5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBFTIESN - HIAARESIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

1

(8

Service concession arrangement

The Group has entered into a service concession
arrangement, which is a Build-Operate-Transfer (“the
BOT") arrangement. Under the BOT arrangement, the
Group carries out construction work of upgrading the
facilities of the sewage treatment and receives in return
a right to operate the infrastructure for a specified
period of time (the “Service Concession Period”) in
accordance with the pre-established conditions set by
certain government authority (“the Grantor”). The
infrastructure should be transferred to the Grantor with
nil consideration at the end of the Service Concession
Period.

(i) Consideration given by the Grantor

A financial asset (receivable under a service
concession arrangement) is recognised to the
extent that the Group has an unconditional right to
receive cash or another financial asset from the
Grantor for the construction service rendered and/
or the consideration paid and payable by the Group
for the right to charge users of the public service.
The Group has unconditional right to receive cash
if the Grantor contractually guarantees to pay the
Group specified or determinable amounts or the
shortfall, if any, between amounts received from
the users of the public service and specified or
determinable amounts. The financial assets
(receivables under service concession arrangement)
are accounted for in accordance with the policy set
out in Note 1().

Revenue relating to operating services are
accounted for in accordance with Note 1(s)(ii)
below. Costs for operating services are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
b E e
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BHFTIEIN - HAAREFIR)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(8

(h)

Service concession arrangement (Continued)
(ii)  Construction and upgrade services

The fair value of the construction and upgrade
service under the service concession arrangement
is calculated as the estimated total construction
costs plus a profit margin. The profit margin is
valued by an independent qualified valuer, based
on prevailing market rate applicable to similar
construction service rendered in similar location at
the date of agreement.

Revenue relating to construction or upgrade
services is accounted for in accordance with Note
1()().

(iii) Contractual obligations to restore the infrastructure
to a specified level of serviceability
The Group has contractual obligations which it must
fulfil as a condition of its licences, that is, () to
maintain the facilities of sewage treatment it
operates to a specified level of serviceability and/or
(i) to restore the plants to a specified condition
before they are handed over to the Grantor at the
end of the Service Concession Period. These
contractual obligations to maintain or restore the
sewage and reclaimed water treatment and water
distribution plants, except for upgrade element, are
recognised and measured in accordance with the
policy set out in Note 1(n).

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where
the customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBFTIESN - HIAARESIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h) Leased assets (Continued)

1

@

As a lessee

Where the contract contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, a lessee shall allocate the
consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate
stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value
assets which, for the Group are primarily steel
pipes. When the Group enters into a lease in
respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as
an expense on a systematic basis over the lease
term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
that rate cannot be readily determined, using a
relevant incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated
using the effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or rate
are not included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B H $R aR Bi aE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BHFTIEIN - HAAREFIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leased assets (Continued)

1

(h)

@

As a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-
use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use
asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
(see Notes 1(e) and 1(i)ii)).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, or there
is a change arising from the reassessment of
whether the Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is
a change in the scope of a lease or the
consideration for a lease that is not originally
provided for in the lease contract (“lease
modification”) that is not accounted for as a
separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments
and lease term using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial position,
the current portion of long-term lease liabilities is
determined as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBFTIESN - HIAARESIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h) Leased assets (Continued)

1

@

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property,
plant and equipment” and presents lease liabilities
in “loans and borrowings” separately in the
consolidated statements of financial position.

For sale and leaseback transactions, the Group
considers whether the initial transfer of the
underlying asset to the buyer-lessor is a sale. The
Group applies HKFRS 15 to determine whether a
sale has taken place.

When the transfer to buyer-lessor is a sale, the
Group derecognises the underlying asset and
applies the lessee accounting model to the
leaseback — the Group measures the right-of-use
asset at the retained portion of the previous
carrying amount (i.e. at cost), and recognises only
the amount of any gain or loss related to the rights
transferred to the lessor.

When the transfer to buyer-lessor is not a sale, the
Group continues to recognise the underlying asset,
and recognises a financial liability for any amount
received from the buyer-lessor.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at
lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified as
a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an
underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not the
case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. The rental income
from operating leases is recognised in accordance
with Note 1(s)(iv).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BxBABFTHEIN - HUAREFR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

1

(h)
(ii)

Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessor (Continued)

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sub-
leases are classified as a finance lease or as an
operating lease with reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease. If the head lease
is a short-term lease to which the Group applies
the exemption described in Note 1(h)(i), then the
Group classifies the sub-lease as an operating
lease.

All the leases are operating leases from the
Group’s perspective. The Group recognises lease
payments received under operating leases as
income on a straight-line basis over the lease term
as part of “Revenue”.

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (“ECLS”) on the following
items:

— financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables and other receivables and
receivables under service concession
arrangement); and

— contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15 (see
note 1(k)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBFTIESN - HIAARESIR)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and

contract assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLS

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using
the following discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

— fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other
receivables and contract assets: effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition
or an approximation thereof; and

— variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Loss allowances for trade receivables, bills
receivable, contract assets and receivables under
service concession arrangement are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLS.
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group's historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors and an assessment of both
the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B H $R aR Bi aE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BHFTIEIN - HAAREFIR)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

@

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when
(i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by
the Group to actions such as realising security (if
any is held); or (i) the financial asset is 90 days
past due. The Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

— failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available),

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor's ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBFTIESN - HIAARESIR)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and

contract assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)
Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the ECL
amount is recognised as an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note
1(s)(v) is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial
asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on the amortised cost
(i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss allowance)
of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B H $R aR Bi aE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BHFTIEIN - HAAREFIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

1

0]

@

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (Continued)
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; or

— the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
lease receivable or contract asset is written off
(either partially or in full) to the extent that there is
no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally
the case when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in the period in
which the recovery occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BxBHEFTHEIN © HIUAREFR)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may be
impaired, an impairment loss previously recognised
no longer exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment, including right-
of-use assets (other than property carried at
revalued amounts);

— intangible assets; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company'’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BxBABFTHEIN - HUAREFR)
1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset will
not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value
in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment l0ss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBFTIESN - HIAARESIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

1

()

(k)

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the
ordinary course of business, in the process of production
for such sale or in the form of materials or supplies to
be consumed in the production process or in the
rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average basis. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold/utilised, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised. The
amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see note 1(s)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under the
payment terms set out in the contract. Contract assets
are assessed for expected credit losses (ECL) in
accordance with the policy set out in note 1()() and are
reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional (see note 1(1)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 1(s)). A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised (see note 1(l)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities
of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
b E e
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BxBABFTHEIN - HUAREFR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

1

)

(m)

(n)

(o)

Receivables under service concession
arrangement and trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset (see note 1(k)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses
(see note 1(i)()).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
expected credit losses (ECL) in accordance with the
policy set out in note 1()i).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and are subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Loans and borrowings

Loans and borrowings are measured initially at fair value
less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and borrowings are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy for borrowing costs (see Note 1(u)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBFTIESN - HIAARESIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

1

(p)

(q)

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans and
the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts are stated
at their present values.

Contributions to appropriate local defined contribution
retirement schemes pursuant to the relevant labour rules
and regulations in the PRC are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss as incurred.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the vyear, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
b E e
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BHFTIEIN - HAAREFIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

1

(q

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in
the future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBFTIESN - HIAARESIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

1

(q

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
b E e
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BHFTIEIN - HAAREFIR)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(r)

(s)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it
arises from the sale of goods, the provision of services
or the use by others of the Group’s assets under leases
in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has
the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BxBHEFTHEIN © HIUAREFR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

1

(s)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

@

Construction contracts

A contract with a customer is classified by the
Group as a construction contract when the
contract relates to work on assets under the
control of the customer and therefore the Group's
construction activities create or enhance an asset
under the customer’s control.

When the outcome of a construction contract can
be reasonably measured, revenue from the
contract is recognised progressively over time using
output method based on direct measurements of
the value of contract work performed.

The likelihood of the Group earning contractual
bonuses for early completion or suffering
contractual penalties for late completion are taken
into account in making these estimates, such that
revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur.

When the outcome of the contract cannot be
reasonably measured, revenue is recognised only to
the extent of contract costs incurred that are
expected to be recovered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B H $R aR Bi aE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BHFTIEIN - HAAREFIR)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Revenue from sewage treatment

Revenue from sewage treatment is recognised
when the relevant service is rendered.

Sales of construction materials and equipment

Revenue is recognised when the customers take
possession of and accepts the construction
materials and equipment.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying the
rate that discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset. For credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of
loss allowance) of the asset (see Note 1(i)(i)).

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
consolidated statements of financial position initially
when there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as income in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBFTIESN - HIAARESIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

1

(t)

(u)

(v)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognhised in
profit or 10ss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. The transaction date is the date on
which the Company initially recognises such non-
monetary assets or liabilities.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Renminbi at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items are
translated into Renminbi at the closing foreign exchange
rates at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part
of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Related parties
(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family,

is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BHFTIEIN - HAAREFIR)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(v)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

0)

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BxBHEFTHEIN © HIUAREFR)

1

SIG

NIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(w)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BHFTIEIN - HAAREFIR)

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements
and other uncertainties affecting application of those policies
and the sensitivity of reported results to changes in condition
and assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing
the consolidated financial statements. The significant
accounting policies are set forth in Note 1. The Group believes
the following critical accounting policies involve the most
significant judgements and estimates used in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements.

2

(@)

(b)

Revenue recognition of construction contracts

As explained in policy Note 1(s)(i), revenue from
construction contracts are recognised over time. Revenue
on uncompleted projects is dependent on estimating the
outcome of the contract. The Group recognises revenue
based on direct measurements of the value of contract
work performed, which is mainly reflected by the
progress certificates issued by customers. The customers
will provide final account when the whole project is
completed and may have adjustments on the amount
recognised to date according to the actual surveys of
work performed at completion. Subject to the
adjustments in final accounts, actual outcomes in terms
of total revenue may be higher or lower at the end of
the reporting period, which would affect the revenue in
future periods as an adjustment to the amounts recorded
to date.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
The management determines the impairment loss if
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an item
of property, plant and equipment may not be
recoverable. The carrying amounts of these assets are
reviewed periodically in order to assess whether the
recoverable amounts have declined below the carrying
amounts. These assets are tested for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their
recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
When such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount
is reduced to the recoverable amount.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BxBHEFTHEIN © HIUAREFR)

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(0

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value
less costs of disposal and the value in use. In
determining the value in use, expected cash flows
generated by the asset are discounted to their present
value, which requires significant judgement relating to
level of estimated revenue and operating costs. The
Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount, including estimates
based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of revenue and costs.

Impairment of trade receivables, bills
receivable, contract assets and receivables
under service concession arrangement

The impairment assessment of trade receivables, bills
receivable, contract assets and receivables under service
concession arrangement of the Group is based on the
evaluation of collectability and ageing analysis of these
assets as well as other quantitative and qualitative
information and calculated the lifetime ECLS based on
credit loss experience, and on management'’s judgement
and assessment of the forward-looking information.
Significant judgement and estimates is required in
assessing the ultimate realisation of these assets, based
on the current creditworthiness, the past collection
history and subsequent settlements of each customer. If
the financial conditions of customers of the Group
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to
make payments, additional impairment may be required.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B H $R aR Bi aE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BxBABFTHEIN - HUAREFR)
3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WaksHBHRE
(@) Revenue (@) W=
The principal activities of the Group are the provision of AEENTEXBRETEAM
construction service, leasing of construction machinery, IRMBEERS  REKW  THE
equipment and tools, and provision of sewage treatment MTAMENRFKERR

service in mainland China.

(i) Disaggregation of revenue i WK=nBED
02( 2019
020 £ 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
R ARBFIT
Revenue from contracts with ERMEREER
customers within the scope of FI5HREER
HKFRS 15 REEFEHNHRE
Disaggregated by major products 1% BE R RIEE
or service lines o)
— Revenue from construction — BERBKE
service 1,112,662 1,456,680
— Revenue from sewage — 5KEE R
treatment service 4,255 5,213
— Others* — HApth* 29,383 9,206
1,146,300 1,471,099
Revenue from other sources H {th 3R R #9 Uk &=
— Revenue from leasing of — BN RER
construction machinery, TEHEKZ
equipment and tools 132,469 107,119
1,278,769 1,578,218
* Others mainly represents sales of construction * HETEEBREMBR
materials and equipment and provision of certain REEE WS IR MHE
logistic services. T 457 R 75 W 2 o

BHERBRERAT —E_TFFER @
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b E e
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FkHHEFTHEIN - IAAREZITR)
3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WakoHHRE (E)
(CONTINUED)
(@) Revenue (Continued) (@ W= (E)
(i) Disaggregation of revenue (Continued) i) W=dEo (8
020 2019
0204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
R ARETTT
Disaggregated by timing of R EREEE D
revenue recognition
— Over time — BERFE 1,249,386 1,569,012
— Point in time — RE—EERHER 29,383 9,206
Total wEt 1,278,769 1,578,218
Revenue from major customers which accounts for W 2 i 7 £ B Wi 2 10% 3K A
10% or more of the Group's revenue are set out EREERFHINOT
below:
020 2019
0204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
R 1 ARKETIT
Customer A BEFEA 700,646 1,086,884
Customer B =FB 178,080 N/A* N A *
@ Less than 10% of the Group's revenue * 1B A 7N 5= [ i 2 9 10%
Details of concentrations of credit risk arising from 5}55%2%%3)5 WEERRSE
these customers are set out in Note 26(a). R B B BT RE26(a)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B H $R aR Bi aE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BHFTIEIN - HAAREFIR)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

Revenue (Continued)

3

(@)

(i)

(iii)

Revenue expected to be recognised in the future
arising from contracts with customers in existence
at the reporting date

As at 31 December 2020, the aggregated amount of
the transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations under the Group’s
existing contracts is RMB1,129,357,000 (2019:
RMB977,534,000). The Group will recognise the
expected revenue in future when or as the work is
completed, which is expected to occur over the
next 36 months (2019: next 36 months).

The above amount also does not include any
amounts of completion bonuses that the Group
may earn in the future by meeting the conditions
set out in the Group’s construction contracts with
customers, unless at the reporting date it is highly
probable that the Group will satisfy the conditions
for earning those bonuses.

Total future minimum lease payments receivable by
the Group

As at 31 December 2020, total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases in place will be receivable by the Group
were RMB3,749,000 (2019: RMB4,504,000). All these
lease payments were receivable within one year.

3

Wi K 2 B & (&)

(@)

Wz (%)

(i)

(iii)

BHERBRARALT

EHARAERANEEHE
RFEBWREEFFETA
# B U 2

H E202012 8318 * o
REALEREALHE &
TRABETENR SERES
%85 AR#1,129,357,0007T
(2019 F : AR ®
977,534,0007T) ° A & & #
R TR (AR A
3618 A e (20194 : kK
RI6ME A ) ) MR A TR FE B

<
S o
T

EReRITTEERARER
RIRA] e sE B i R AN S [ £
BRI HREA DT
fi fF T Bk ER & 4E fa] 52 T 88
B BRIERMERH - KK
15 5 7] B i AR R % B 5%
B A0 164

AEBEERHARREHRE
BEN -

#H E£2020F128318 » &
EEIBRE N HEECEHE
JE U oK e AR AR &~ Fh 4 sE
A A R #3,749,0007T (2019
& AR #4,504,0007T) °
FTEZSHENRER—F

13
NEE ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BxBHEFTHEIN © HIUAREFR)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

3

(b)

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by service lines. In a
manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment. No geographical segment
analysis is presented as substantially all assets, liabilities,
revenue and gross profit of the Group are attributable to
the operations in the PRC.

The Group has four separate segments as follows:
(“Construction

o Provision of construction service
service”);

o Provision of leasing services of construction
machinery, equipment and tools (“Leasing of
construction machinery, equipment and tools”);

o Provision of sewage treatment service (“Sewage
treatment operation”); and

o Sales of construction materials and equipment and
others (“Others”).

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s
senior executive management monitors the results based
on the revenue and gross profits of Construction service,
Leasing of construction machinery, equipment and tools,
Sewage treatment operation and others.

@ JIANZHONG CONSTRUCTION DEVELOPMENT LIMITED  Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B Rk MY et

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BxBABFTHEIN - HUAREFR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WakoaHHE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) ZEREFHE (&)

Year ended 31 December 2020 #Z2020%128

JIALEE
Revenue W 1,112,662 132,469 4,255 29,383 1,278,769
Cost of sales HEMA (878,481) (81,280) (3,897) (26,680) (990,338)
Reportable segment gross BEHHBEF
profits 234,181 51,189 358 2,703 288,431

Year ended 31 December 2019 #Z2019%F128

JIBLEEE
Revenue W& 1,456,680 107,119 5213 9,206 1,578,218
Cost of sales HERA (1,144,417) (68,801) (4,524) (6:459)  (1,224,195)
Reportable segment gross BEDHBEF
profits 312,269 38,318 689 2,747 354,023
Substantially all of the Group’s revenue were arising from REBEBARIE S K=HREF
mainland China. The Group does not allocate any specific At e BRASEE R RITHEE
assets or expenditure for property, plant and equipment BUEFEREBENEERS S
to the operating segments as the Group’s senior HrLRR  AEEWERDE -
executive management does not use the information to TR 5 N 5% oo Be A AR 45 Bl & EE 2k
measure the performance of the reportable segments. R ELEDE -

ETERBRRERLE —ToTFEFR @
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b E e
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FkHHEFTHEIN - IAAREZITR)
4 OTHER NET INCOME 4
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T T ARETTT
Interest income B WA 2,870 1,878
Government grants* BT 78 B 3,825 12,196
Gain on disposal of property, plant and  H&¥%E - R &R EWZ
equipment 3,142 1,509
Others Hth 339 25
10,176 15,608
@ Government grants mainly represented rewards for listing and * BT 4 B 2 Z 45 £ R EVG = R
the obtaining of High-tech Enterprise qualification. There were EERNEE 2SR ERE
no unfulfilled conditions relating to the grants. PR B 15 o
5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5 BAIAE
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: BATAE S MR
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T T ARBETIT
(@ Finance costs (@ mMERAKR
Interest on bank loans and other SBITER R HMER
borrowings AR 12,968 12,825
Interest on lease liabilities HEB BN E 35 180
Finance charges on sale and ERARR S 85
leaseback transactions & M 934 933
Interest on acquisition of VA5 BA A~ SR B A RR 1S
equipment by instalments EEBRE 3,080 2,413
Other borrowing costs H {8 B A 1,441 1,012
18,458 17,363
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Notes to the Financial Statements '
B Rk MY et
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BxBABFTHEIN - HUAREFR)
5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED) 5 BiaATRE (&)
020 2019
0204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
R AR¥F T
(b)  Staff costs (including directors’ by BEBIRAK(BEESH
emoluments) )
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITERHM
& H 59,010 50,431
Contributions to defined FE HFGRKE R
contribution retirement benefit FTEI R (M EE22)
schemes (Note 22) 170 3,071
59,180 53,502
020 2019
0204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
R AR F T
(c) Other items (0 HmEH
Depreciation e
— property plant and equipment — BEYE BEX
owned (Note 10(i)) &8 (MTFE10()) 88,946 100,601
— right-of-use assets (Note 10(ii)) — FREEE
(FFFE10()) 655 2,298
89,601 102,899
Amortisation of intangible assets | &
(Note 11) (H$3E11) 384 9
Impairment losses on assets arising BEEESXMEL
from contract with customers BERREEE 114,767 20,808
Expenses relating to short-term MO HAEE@EN
leases Z 23,184 57,664
Auditors’ remuneration ZE AN & 2,800 1,330
Research and development costs it 2% & A 41,034 55,415
Labour subcontracting fee By BE 449,700 465,856
Listing expenses ETmER 6,948 18,605
BHERBRARAT —B-REER @
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B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BkZBFTESIN » HAARETIR)

6 Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit 6 #HREBBERPHAE
or loss

(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit Q) SZEEZXRPHBES:
or loss represents:

2020 2019
20204 20194F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARBT T
Current tax — PRC Corporate RIAHE — e ¥
Income Tax Frie#
Provision for the year FAREE 3,826 31,481
Deferred tax — PRC Corporate EBEHE — PELH
Income Tax Frie#
Origination and reversal of EERBOEREEZESR
temporary differences 5,473 (2,399)
9,299 29,082
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) REABRFTENFIERX
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: HestABzENE R :
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETTT
Profit before taxation ot Bl ) 69,049 208,322
Notional tax on profit before BB A ERMSEHHRE

taxation, calculated at the rates STE BRI EZ BTN
applicable to profits in the

countries concerned 18,379 52,322
Tax effect of non-deductible AR AZ T EEE
expenses 912 1,257

Tax effect of super deduction for — FFEEBE MR ETE
qualified research and

development costs (4,269) (5,384)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not k&R A& &) A T 18 E 18 00
recognised mBE 26 594

Effect on deferred tax balances at 1 HFiR&Z&HEHN1A1H
January resulting from a change BT IR R E

in tax rate (11) 716
Statutory tax concession ETEMBER (5,738) (20,423)
Actual tax expense ERHRIERS 9,299 29,082

@ JIANZHONG CONSTRUCTION DEVELOPMENT LIMITED  Annual Report 2020



———

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BxBABFTHEIN - HUAREFR)

6 Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss (Continued)

(b)

Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(Continued)

Notes:

(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman lIslands and the BVI.

(ii) No provision was made for Hong Kong Profits Tax as the
Group did not earn any assessable profit that was subject
to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year ended 31
December 2020.

(i)~ The Group's subsidiaries in mainland China is subject to
PRC corporate income tax at the statutory rate of 25%.

On 7 January 2020, Jianzhong Construction Technology
Co., Ltd. (“Jianzhong Construction Technology”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
obtained the state-level approval for its application of
High-tech Enterprise qualification and was granted the
qualification with effect from 2 December 2019. In
accordance with the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law (“CIT
Law"), the High-tech Enterprise qualification will be valid
for a period of three years from 2019 to 2021 and
entitles Jianzhong Construction Technology to a reduced
tax rate at 15% during this period.

In December 2020, Fujian Jinghai Engineering Service Co.,
Ltd. (“Jinghai Engineering”), another indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, obtained the state-level
approval for its application of High-tech Enterprise
qualification and was granted the qualification with effect
from 1 December 2020. In accordance with the CIT Law,
the High-tech Enterprise qualification will be valid for a
period of three years from 2020 to 2022 and entitles
Jinghai Engineering to a reduced tax rate at 15% during
this period.

6

mEBRBRTHAEHR (F)

(b)

BIEAB R ERBIER X
EEAEzENER
(&)

B &E -

iy REHNSHEREBEZES
MR AIFOER - AEE B A
MRERBRRBREAHEEN
EEIFRSH

(i) ARAEEREE2020F127
318 4 I £ BREAE fa] 22 4
MBS T ERBOREN
R bk 0 % st 2 8 8 15 B3 4 1 B
1 e

(i)  AEBERFE AR E R R
FRIR25%H) A TE Tt R A
EMEH

EHhELERERAETAR
(MR &R AR FMM
BE2EWB AT Al
P EBRILMN2020FE1 78 %
SRR EE  HEGZER
201912 B2 B #£ A &% - 1R
B(PEARLMB S EMEH
INTREMBRED » B
T ERNBREA=F (A
20194 £20214) - &
BB EREBANZ IR IZ15%8
TR o

BEREREIRRBAERAT
(TREBIR]  AREZ—FRM
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B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FkHHEFTHEIN - IAAREZITR)

7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 7 EEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of RIBE B R RHEBI S 383(1) 1§ K& A 7] (H#
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the BESH=ER) ROIE2MAEENE
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of EMEAT
Directors) Regulation are as follows:
) 0 ) ) 0 020
O DO 0 Old
iR B 0204
RMB’000 B'000 RMB’000 00 RMB’000
Executive directors BITES
Mr. Xun Minghong RAIRE — 181 270 1 452
Mr. He Wenlin ] UM SE E — 181 220 1 402
Ms. Zheng Ping B+ — 145 206 — 351
Non-executive directors ~ FHTES
Mr. Yang Kaifa EREEE — — — — —
Mr. Zeng Guohua BEEL A — — — — —
Mr. Xun Liangbao HREXAE — 181 220 —* 401
Independent non-executive BIFHTES
directors
Mr. Sze Irons HERELAE 100 — — — 100
Mr. Wong Kun Kau EREKELE 100 — — — 100
Mr. Zhu Diwu RIEFAE 100 — — — 100
300 688 916 2 1,906
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B Rk MY et
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BHFTIEIN - HAAREFIR)
7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) 7 EEME (&)
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme 2019
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
o 2K SN 20194
ko EWEF B EIEAT REES b
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT ARBTLT AREBTT ARETT ARETR
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Xun Minghong A = 180 270 4 454
Mr. He Wenlin S = 180 220 4 404
Ms. Zheng Ping Bt = 144 206 = 350
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Yang Kaifa BREEE — — — — —
Mr. Zeng Guohua e = = = = =
Mr. Xun Liangbao HRELE = 135 213 3 351
— 639 909 11 1,559

*

Notes:

(@)

This represents an amount less than RMB1,000.

Mr. Xun Minghong, Mr. He Wenlin and Ms. Zheng Ping were
appointed as executive directors of the Company on 5 February
2019.

Mr. Xun Minghong, Mr. He Wenlin and Ms. Zheng Ping were also
directors of the Group’s subsidiary, Jianzhong Construction
Technology and/or employees of the Group for the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019 and the Group paid emoluments to
them in their capacity as the directors of Jianzhong Construction
Technology and/or employees of the Group before their
appointment as executive directors of the Company.

Mr. Yang Kaifa, Mr. Zeng Guohua and Mr. Xun Liangbao were
appointed as non-executive directors of the Company on 23
August 2019.

Mr. Sze Irons, Mr. Wong Kun Kau and Mr. Zhu Diwu were
appointed as independent non-executive directors of the
Company on 18 February 2020.

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, there were no
amounts paid or payable by the Group to the directors or any of
the highest paid individuals set out in Note 8 below as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as a
compensation for loss of office. For the year ended 31
December 2020, Mr. Yang Kaifa and Mr. Zeng Guohua waived
their remuneration of RMB93,000 and RMB93,000 respectively.
Save as disclosed above, there was no arrangement under
which a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

ZE R ARE1,0007T

BB TEE  AIXMEE R+
M20192 A5 A EZ ERARRIHH
TEE-

RBIZE20204F & 20194F12 A31H IE5F
B BRALKE  (AIXMEE RE S
ZEIFHERKENE R RREPER
RIRMEER RAEEESR  HR
BREBRER/RARBNITES 28
AEENBRENETEZRMENES
R/EAEENEES FHAKRSZ
< e

BRELE TREAERARER
HER2019F8 23R EEZERA R A
FIERITESE o

MEERIEE A  BIEMEERRME K
HER2020F2 R 18R EEZ E R AR A
B FRNTES -

REE20204F £ 2019F 12 B31H 1L
B AEEVEINKENSETE
AN diiE R SR EETSE A N
+ - {EATR 3|15 5 0 A K & @ sk 5 0
AN £ B I A 42 B sk 1E A BB A0 1
8 - RE 202012 B31H IEFE -
BRELSERERELESIRER
HE A R #93,0007T & A R #93,000
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B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FkHHEFTHEIN - IAAREZITR)

8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 8

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, 3 (2019: 2)
are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in Note 7. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other 2 (2019:

REHFMAL

REBBHMALH 3% (20195 : 2
%) BEE - EFMAOHETRE - At
24 (2019% : 3%) AL 2 Hil @z

3) individuals are as follows:

mF -

2020 2019

2020 20194

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T T AREEF T

Salaries and other emoluments FoehkEMME 1,671 926
Discretionary bonuses B TEAT 188 394
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B R 19 13
1,878 1,333

The emoluments of the 2 (2019: 3) individuals with the highest
emoluments are within the following band:

EeFMALH - 248 (2019F : 38) A
TZHMORIETIHENA

2020 2019

20204 20194

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE AEX

Nil-HK$ 1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000/ 7T 1 3

HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,008 T =

2,000,000 7T
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B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BxBABFTHEIN - HUAREFR)

9

10

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity shareholder of the Company of
RMB59,750,000 (2019: RMB179,240,000) and the weighted
average of 592,128,000 ordinary shares (2019: 468,750,000
shares) in issue as if the Reorganisation and capitalisation
issue had been effective throughout the periods presented,

calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

9 BRER

FIEQMAR

BRRE AR BT THIR IR A A 7] o5 A 3R e
1HFE A R ¥59,750,0007T (20194 : A
R #179,240,0007T ) & hn 4 F 5 &
592,128,000% B 3 17 3% 8 I% (20194F -
468,750,0000%) 5T & * BN\ K& A
{LBETREESRPE —EER T8

MEFHHEERBE

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R1ATEME &7 E@R 10
Capitalisation issue &AL EETT 468,740
Effect of issue of 156,250,000 ordinary shares upon initial R2020%3 18 H &KX
public offering on 18 March 2020 (Note 25(c)(ii)) NABEERET
156,250,000 % I 38 f% B9
522 (MfsE25(c)(ii) 123,378
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 12 A 31 B BN 15
31 December M E B 592,128

Diluted earnings per share is equal to basic earnings per share

R & 220204 2201912 8318 1t

as there were no dilutive potential shares outstanding for the FEN R BB N BITEINRG
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

At ERESRA SN ETREARRT -
10 ¥ BERRZRE

02( 2019
020 £ 20194
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
s R AR®ET T
Property, plant and equipment owned BAEW¥ - HE L& E (i) 476,921 396,222
Right-of-use assets FREEE (i) 355 1,010
477,276 397,232
EPERBRRERLAT —B-TEFRH @
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B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FkHHEFTHEIN - IAAREZITR)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10 % - BERZE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(i) Property, plant and equipment owned () BEVZE BEERRHE
and 0 0ld

quipme 010 00 equipme proveme 0ld

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Cost: HA:
At 1 January 2019 RN9E1A18 353475 29,865 23201 1,158 1139 628838
Additions RE 52,017 324 30,309 439 556 83,645
Disposals RE (11,180) (1,985) @121 - - (17,286)
At 31 December 2019 R019E128318 394,312 28,204 269,339 1,597 1,695 695,197
Additions RE 166,322 149 38403 21 - 204,89
Disposals RE (67,113) (12,775) (8,514) - - (78.402)
At 31 December 2020 RunFnyE | A 15578 pous 168 % 821,690
Accumulated depreciation: Bt H7E -
At 1 January 2019 R019%1818 98,382 16,155 93,79 528 - 208,361
Charged for the year Ematz 45,388 4,997 49,638 350 28 100,601
Written back on disposals R EREM (6,048) (1,885) (2,554) = = (10,487)
At 31 December 2019 R019%12A318 137,72 19,267 140,880 878 Vi 298975
Charge for the year ERnatE 16,831 312 38,152 305 537 88,946
Written back on disposals REEREE (26,69 (11,562) (4,8%) = = (43152)
AL 31 December 2020 RuNFNANE | 7861 10826 AL AT S [ 3769
Net book value: RESE:
At 31 December 2020 R2020F128318 345,660 4,752 125,144 35 930 476921
At 31 December 2019 R019E128318 256,590 8,937 128,509 719 1467 396,222
All property, plant and equipment owned by the Group AEBEMBEBEME  BE KK

are located in the PRC.
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B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BxBABFTHEIN - HUAREFR)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

(ii) Right-of-use assets
The Group has obtained the right to use certain office/
factory buildings through tenancy agreements. The leases
typically run for an initial period of 1 to 5 years. Some
leases include an option to renew the lease when all
terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes
variable lease payments. The analysis of the net book

10 % - BERFRE (&)

iy ERAEEE
AEEREHEHEGRARERS
THRAE/HE - HERT R
RP-—ZERF -FETHERSA
REFRER A G R R AR
ER-HMEHEEEIZEEN
R REBEES R EREER

value of right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset ERMEFEINET :
is as follows:
0
0
) O :
oo o
RMB’000
Balance as at 1 January 2019 201941 A1 H K85 3,308
Depreciation charge for the year FAFETIR (2,298)
Balance as at 31 December 2019 and 72019412 A31 8 & 20204F
1 January 2020 1H1BBEREE 1,010
Depreciation charge for the year FRFTEFTIE (655)
Balance as at 31 December 2020 7202012 A 31 B K #4758 355

(iii) Assets pledged as security for liabilities

The Group sold some of its machinery and equipment to
external parties and leased them back for a term of 3
years. The Group determined the transfers to buyer-
lessor were not sales under HKFRS15, thus the Group
continues to recognise the underlying assets, and
recognises financial liabilities for the considerations
received in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in Note 1(h)(i). No gain or loss were recognised from the
sale and leaseback transactions for the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019. As at 31 December 2020, the
carrying amounts of the machinery and equipment
pledged for the aforementioned sale and leaseback
transactions were RMB92,585,000 (2019: RMB14,789,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
obtained special bank loans to acquire some machinery
and equipment, and these machinery and equipment will
be pledged to the bank until the settlement of the
corresponding bank loans. As at 31 December 2020, the
carrying amounts of the machinery and equipment
pledged for bank loans were RMB71,615,000 (2019: nil).

(i) EREEBERNEE
AEEBE N & T D AR K 5
I A 1% 78 [0 5% S5 A S 5% A
BHF - AEEBRAMNEH —
HHEAELOERL TS
AR 155RIB T BT RE K88
E MASEEERRIEBRE
B 0 IR BRRT EE ())& A B = 5t
BERBEBWBMHREERCRE
& » INE 20204 K 2019412 A
JNBLEFEMNEERHEBRFIAR
T R AE ] Y a5 2 B 48 © 120204
12A318 LA EZEBDR S
EROERERENEASEA
A R #92 5850007 (20194 : A
R #14,789,0007T) °

HEZ2020F12A31B IEEE - &
EEESFERERITERABES
DR R B A T AR A % 3R
HEEEFIET B2 5 EHE
RISR1T B A LE - FR2020F 12 B
318  FERTTE FE I A &
RENEEAEBEBAARE
71,615,0007C (20194F : ££) o

RORRVBARAT —B-BEER @
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BxBHBFTHEIN © HUAREFR)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

(iv) Assets leased out under operating leases

10 ¥ - BEKRRE (E)
(ivy RERKEHEHENEE

During the ordinary course of business, some machinery
and equipment, i.e. tower cranes and construction hoist,
are acquired by the Group for leasing purpose. The
leases typically run for a period of 6 to 12 months, with

an option to renew the lease after renegotiation.

The reconciliation of tower cranes and construction hoist
of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2020 and

2019 is as below:

REEEBBED AEEHR
HERMBEETHESRIEL®
BEERMERE REHE
RBPRE+Z@A  RERKA
B -

7N £2 B FA B, 2 20204 22019412
ANBLEEENEREETRE
REBRIDT ¢

Cost: RN :
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1 818 52,056
Additions nNE 19,998
Disposals BE (6,922)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RK2019F 128318 &

2020F1H1H 65,132
Additions NE 151,481
Disposals BRE (7,610)
At31December2020  A2020912A318 | 209,003
Accumulated depreciation: REITE -
At 1 January 2019 201951 H1H 18,549
Depreciation for the year FAFE 6,230
Written back on disposals A S R 3 [ (4,215)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 R2019F12 8318 &

2020F1A1R 20,564
Depreciation for the year FAWTE 10,341
Written back on disposals R EREE (5,290)
At31December2020 R2020912A31H | 25,615
Net book value: BREFEE
At 31 December 2020 M2020F12 A31H 183,388
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12A31H 44,568
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B H $R aR Bi aE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BxBABFTHEIN - HUAREFR)
10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10 % - BERZE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(iv) Assets leased out under operating leases (v RELEHELENEE
(Continued) (#&)
Other assets are mainly acquired for the Group’s own AEEFZFABEHFERBERE
use for construction projects, but the Group also leases WHEHEMEE  BAREEINBEE
out some of these assets according to customers’ EEFEETRELHEETZEE
specific needs. Those leases are mainly short-term E-mEHEXZEAEHHESE -
leases, with an option to renew the lease after RERE A -
renegotiation.
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the carrying amounts 20204 201912 H431H + 1B
of assets (other than tower cranes and construction BEEHERENEE (BEmRE
hoist) leased out under operating lease are as follows: ITRERIN RMSTELT :
Machinery
and Motor
equipment vehicles Tools Total
B KRR A AE IR #et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARS®TRT AR®TR AR®TR AR®TxR
Net book value: BRTEFEE :
At 31 December 2020 7202012 A31H 27,227 391 97 27,715
At 31 December 2019 72019412 A31H 52,728 4,985 297 58,010
The Group obtains residual value guarantees from the REBBERBABSHGEERE
lessees to reduce the residual asset risks where RAR A FIgRE Rk (2@EA) -
applicable.

ETERBRRERLE —ToTFEFR @
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b E e
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BxBHBFTHEIN © HUAREFR)
11 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 11 BEEE
Software Licenses Total
B 1 B st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AR%®Tn AR®TxR
Cost: A
At 1 January 2019 R2019%F1A1H 909 = 909
Additions = — — —
At 31 December 2019 and R2019F 12318 &

1 January 2020 2020F1A1H 909 — 909
Acquisition of a subsidiary W BE B B8 A =) — 3,300 3,300
At31December 2020  M2020%12A318 | 909 3,300 4,209
Accumulated amortisation: E-S:

At 1 January 2019 R2019%F1A1H 116 = 116
Amortisation for the year FNEH 91 = 91
At 31 December 2019 and R2019F12A318 &

1 January 2020 20201 A1H 207 — 207
Amortisation for the year  #w#s EL N 293 384
At31December 2020  W2020912A3H | 298 . 293 591
Net book value: REFEE
At 31 December 2020 12020912 A31H 611 3,007 3,618
At 31 December 2019 201912 H31H 702 = 702
Acquisition of subsidiary g0 N
On 18 September 2020, the Group entered into an equity M2020F9 A18 8 - ANE B R % i s
transfer agreement to acquire 100% equity interest in Fujian EiE - WNEEREREERARAF
Donghuan Construction Co., Ltd. at a total consideration of B 2 B AE - AR (E R AR 3,300,000
RMB3,300,000 (Note 19(f). The principal activity of Fujian 7T (BEEE19() - BRREERBRAA
Donghuan Construction Co., Ltd. is provision of construction WEBXRBERIBHEEER - M EAI&
service, and its identifiable assets are mainly licenses for MEEFZREERBERR ERNEE
construction service. The transaction was completed in AT A AT EE SRR — AR ER
September 2020 and recognised as an acquisition of assets, BEPIZERBER) - BXZ5ER
rather than a business combination, given that all of the fair 20204F9 A ek - iR R U E & E M
value of the assets is concentrated in a group of similar IEEBEH - TR FEENE —P5F
identifiable assets, i.e. the licenses for construction service. TEE A I FE19(f) ©
Further details of the net assets acquired are set out in Note
19(f).
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BHFTIEIN - HAAREFIR)

12 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Other non-current assets mainly represent prepaid amounts for
acquisition of properties, construction machinery, equipment
and tools.

13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the

12 HiFRBEE
EiIPRBAETEARBYE  BE
B RERTANBERR -

13 RHBARRE
TRERJHAEMEE EERARK
ELEEAPENMBARZHE -

Group.
Place of
incorporation  Particulars of issued Proportion of
Company name and business  and paid-up capital ownership interest Principal activities
T AR S R BERTRBRE
ARER E 38 BERZFHE BEERLH TEER
Held by the  Held by a
Company  subsidiary
) NG
LNGIESE ] 55
Jianzhong Construction PRC RMB168,450,000 — 100% Provision of construction
Technology (BEEH EZREH services
BREMRR)?
BREAEINEER HE AR 168,450,0007T = 100% IRERERS
BEEAR"?
Jinghai Engineering (iR&%& &8 PRC RMB30,000,000 = 100% Production, sale, installation
IRRBARAF)S and leasing of construction
machinery, equipment and
tools and construction
material
BRAGEBIRRBERRR®  HH AR #30,000,0007C = 100% HE #HE ZERHEERE
B ERTAREM
Fujian Jianzhong Logistic Co., Ltd. ~ PRC RMB35,600,330 — 100% Provision of goods
(BRETMRERAR) transportation services
BEERMRERAR HE AR #35,600,3307T = 100% REEMEHRS
Fujian Jianzhong Environmental PRC RMB50,000,000 — 100% Sewage treatment operations
Technology Co., Ltd. ((B2%
BARRRNMBEERAA)
BRERPRRMBREBR A e AR #50,000,0007C — 100% J57KEIBR
Guangdong Haizhijian Engineering  PRC RMB4,400,000 — 100% Leasing of construction
Technology Co., Ltd. (ER&EZ machinery, equipment and
BIRRSEBRAR) tools and construction
material
BREEIRBEAERLR) FE AR #4,400,0007C = 100% MEREME RERIAR
B
Fujian Hairuncheng Construction PRC HK$220,000,000 — 100% Investment holding and sale
Development Co., Ltd. (185
BERRERERERAR)
RESHRELEREB AR FE 220,000,00075 7T — 100% BJEERRHEE
Fujian Donghuan Construction PRC RMB2,500,000 — 100% Provision of construction
Co, ld. (REREBER services
ARAF)
BEREEZZARDR FE AR #2,500,0007T — 100% RRMEERE

RTERBRERAT —B-BEER @
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b E e
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BkZBFTESIN » HAARETIR)
13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 13 RINBABIRE (F)
(CONTINUED)
Notes: B 5E -
1. The official names of the entities are in Chinese. The English 1. FXEBAREEARE X HEHR
names are for identification purpose only. 8% o
2. The entity was previously known as @2 2R EHE R D AR 2. ABEEETEIBERNERA
A7), and on 25 February 2019, the entity was converted into a A 201942258 #H AF R A
limited liability company and changed its name to @& EH AWERRERETERBEERE
BEBREEARA. (EE/NCIID
3. The entity was previously known as 82 & 2R TREEERE A 3. MEEEAET IRRREZARAT
@], and on 23 March 2020, the entity changed its name to &3 M2020F3 AR E X AEEE RE
EREIRERBERRDA. TERBERARA -
4. Al the PRC subsidiaries disclosed above are limited liability 4. FiA bt TR BR /) A BB B A 5139 &
companies. BREMERAA -
14 INVENTORIES 14 78
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Materials Wt 7,500 10,769
consumables FEM 12,475 7,000
Finished goods X @ 3,970 3,883
Work in progress & 4,323 4,909
28,268 26,561
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BxBABFTHEIN - HUAREFR)
15 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 15 EHEERGHERE
LIABILITIES
(@) Contract assets @ BHEE
02( 2019
020 £ 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
S ANEREEF T
Arising from performance under BRESHBHNESE
construction contracts 581,612 490,201
Receivables from contracts with B A B 153 E 2R
customers within the scope of F1REBERN B A
HKFRS 15, which are included in [ 8 5 Kk H g W 5kIE
“Trade and other receivables” FREEF &L EY
(Note 16) FIE (M 7E16) 661,513 277,019

Contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s rights to
consideration for work completed but not yet reached
the milestones for billing at the reporting date. The
Group’s construction contracts include payment
schedules which require stage payments over the
construction period once milestones are reached. The
Group also typically agrees to a retention for 3% to 5%
of the contract value. The retention period normally
ranges from one to two years upon the completion of
work. This amount is included in contract assets until the
end of the retention period as the Group's entitlement to
this final payment is conditional on the Group’s work
satisfactorily passing inspection.

As at 31 December 2020, the amount of contract assets
that was expected to be recovered after more than one
year were RMB216,390,000 (2019: RMB162,115,000).

Contract assets are transferred to trade receivables when
the rights become unconditional.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the amount of
revenue recognised from performance obligations
satisfied (or partially satisfied) in previous periods is
RMB3,263,000 (2019: RMB3,308,000).

BRNEETZRAKENNER
BHE =TERRZIAAZER
EENIRAERKIDNKES
- AEENEESNTEEN
REREE  BXRNEXEREER
SRR S B ME b RS R AS
Ko ARE—RIRAVEEN3%
E%MELERE - BRABES
TRERE-EMF -BHRAK
= A WA B R AR IR AR T AN &
B T2 A BN BRI -
MR ERMERA - HESEA
AABKHEE -

MR20204E12 A31H - TEH — & 1%
AREENEENSEAARE
216,390,0007C (20194 : A R #
162,115,0007T ) °

EHMAENKSEGSE  GHE
EBAE 5 REWHA -

HE2020612A31HIEEE - B
BT EARE ST A (3B FERK) /B 4Y
EEMERHUZSES I AA
R#3,263,0007T (20194 : AR
3,308,0007T) ©

RORRVBARAT —B-BEER @
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B 3R R i =t
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BkZBFTESIN » HAARETIR)
15 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 15 GHNEEREGHNEAEE (FE)
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Contract liabilities by EHEE
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AR¥ET T
Billings in advance for construction A 42 8 UK BR X
contracts 5,634 13,232
Sales deposits received BEREEES 86 90
5,720 13,322
Contract liabilities primarily relate to the consideration SHREBEZEREANRE P KR
received from customers in advance, for which revenue HWRERHE  ERRREBATIEMR
is recognised based on the progress of the provision of MR RIS BV EERER o
related services.
For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenue HZE2020F 128318 IEFE - K
recognised in the year that was included in the contract FHFAGRNEBERTFERNEA
liabilities balance at the beginning of the year was TR Y = A KR 810,344,000
RMB10,344,000 (2019: RMB4,834,000). (20194 : AR¥4,834,0007T) °
16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 16 BEZRHEMEWKIE

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T

Trade receivables, net of loss allowance 2 5 &L k18

(BRIBRAEHE)
— third parties = =7 769,360 350,740
— related parties — FAu 3,322 3,402
Bills receivable FEE 64,623 73,700
Prepayments to suppliers ) L 8 725 1 1 A TR BRIE 21,816 27,642
Amounts due from related parties JE W BaBS: 5 SRR — 1,368
Deposits and other receivables e R H M EWKFRIR 44,122 19,657

903,243 476,509
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BHFTIEIN - HAAREFIR)

16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 16 ESZKHMEWKRRKIE (&)
(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2020, the amount of deposits expected to
be recovered or recognised as expense after more than one
year is RMB3,201,000 (2019: RMB3,000,000). All of the other
trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered or
recognised as expense within one year.

As part of its normal business, the Group has entered into
certain factoring agreements with certain banks and factoring
companies. During the year ended 31 December 2020,
outstanding trade receivables of RMB46,914,000 (2019:
RMB630,160,000) were sold to certain banks or factoring
companies in accordance with non-recourse factoring
agreements, and the corresponding trade receivables were
derecognised as the directors are of the view that the
substantial risks and rewards associated with the trade
receivables have been transferred and therefore these
receivables were qualified for derecognition.

As at 31 December 2020, outstanding commercial acceptance
bills of RMB18,499,000 (2019: RMB52,477,000) were endorsed to
certain suppliers with recourse and the Group continued to
recognise the corresponding receivables. The associated
liabilities with the same amount were included in trade and
other payables (Note 20).

As at 31 December 2020, outstanding commercial acceptance
bills of RMB49,957,000 were discounted to banks with recourse
and were not derecognised. The associated liabilities with the
same amount were included in bank loans (Note 21(a)).

M20205E12 318 @ FEEIEA BB —F
RO T EREATNEESEAAR
#3,201,0007T (20194 : A R
3,000,0007T) - FTE EtbE 5 R E b fE
WRIBIEET R —F R E R AR
§ o

EBAEBMNEEEBHN—In ' £5%
EEEETIRTRRBEAGGIMNE TR
B o BE2020FILEE - £EAA
R ¥46,914,0007T (20194 : A R ¥
630,160,0007T) K 15 7 (8 18 & 5 FE UK
ERFEEEEREREHETE TR
ITRIRE AR - BEERE S EUFIAR
IHER  AREZMREEE S EUGK
BHEANEARBERREEE - At
ZERBZBRARIERNER -

MN20205F 128318 28 A AR
18,499,0007T (20194F : AR ¥&52,477,000
TR ABERERLERR S TH
EEEE (MERE)  MASEEEER
RARFEE W RIE - AiER2FEMEEA
Bt AE 5 R E A e 518 (Fi7E20) -

MN20205F 128318 - 28 A AR
49,957,0007C H) (M K (BB P A H B iE
EAEIR TIRTT (MTERME) - WARK T
R BNRSENEBEEFARTE
K (HFsE21(0)) o

S B @
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b E e
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BxBHBFTHEIN © HUAREFR)
16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 16 EZKHEMEWKRKIE (&)
(CONTINUED)
Ageing analysis AR 2 A
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of R EHR - REEFA A R E R
trade and bills receivables (which are included in trade and B HESBEAHRIBREENE 5 EK
other receivables), based on date of progress certificates or RIBEREWERE GTAZ S R E M ER
date of issuance of bills and net of loss allowance, is as FIB) WERER AT AT ¢
follows:
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T AR¥ET T
Within 1 month ME A A 130,223 93,800
More than 1 month but within 3 months 1Z31& A 192,551 106,109
More than 3 months but within 6 months 3Z 61 A 179,168 109,068
More than 6 months but within 6= 128 A
12 months 231,328 100,055
More than 12 months BiE121E A 104,035 18,810
837,305 427,842
According to the payment terms in contracts, the Group is BESHNIMNER  AEBBREXK
entitled to request for progress payments that are usually XNEEN  BE2ELEEFETIT
measured by reference to a prescribed percentage of the BReHENFEEA LT E - A5EREE
certified amount of work completed. Further details on the BEREZEBGIIBEEANEERR 2
Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from trade #— B BERRME26()

receivables are set out in Note 26(a).
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BHFTIEIN - HAAREFIR)

17 RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION 17
ARRANGEMENT
In January 2018, the Group entered into a service agreement to
provide sewage treatment service in Changle District. Details of
the Group’s service concession arrangement for providing

%ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁﬁ?%@%%
I

R2018F1 A - AEE RN REREEH
BKEIE R ET LR ik - BEAS
B 12 (05 7K B 32 AR 75 B AR %5 5 R A 2

sewage treatment service are listed below:

Term of concession rights
R FF R HARR

Rights to use specific assets

ERREEENEN
Pricing
k]

Minimum sewage treatment
volume guaranteed
RERKETKEES

Responsibilities

Term of termination
R IEERR

Obligations to deliver specified
assets at the end of the
concession period

RETEARINEEEERN
B

Term of renewal
E L3N

FFFIBANT

Till 30 April 2030
HZE2030%4H30H

All relevant sewage treatment infrastructure
i B 18 B8 5 7K B 38 3% Bt

Initial sewage treatment unit tariff price is set out in the relevant service
agreement. Non-routine review of sewage treatment unit tariff price is
conducted upon change in production costs or additional capital expenditure
incurred due to compliance with new environmental requirements
VIKEIEE RN EEHINNEERG R - KRB EEBNIETREHN
AERANTER S IHRNBEINIRBERMELERIINE RN RET

40,000 tonnes per day
X 40,0000

During the concession period, the Group shall:
REFFTRE AR - AR E A :

e Maintain the sewage treatment facilities and operation of sewage treatment
o HTEISIKEEIERIE R FKEE

e Monitor water quality
o ELYEKE

e Disclose to the public the relevant tap water supply parameters, including
quality, supply pressure and other service measures
s MARBEARKEEMNHALE - BIEKE  KEREMARFGEIE

Upon expiry of the concession period
ST A E W R

At the end of the concession period, the Group is obliged to deliver all the
relevant sewage treatment infrastructure to the Grantor at nil consideration

RPN AEEARERR T A RXNAEHEBRKEEERRE

Not determined

BOERBRERAA —ToTFFH @
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17 RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION 17 BRB4SF#EZHE T R

ARRANGEMENT (CONTINUED) 15 (8])
The Group's receivables under service concession arrangement AEBD R SKEERB ST ELEEIR
in respect of sewage treatment service concession THEWRIERIIOT

arrangement are as follows:

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETFTT
Non-current portion JERNHR &L 5 29,201 32,909
Current portion BN ERE8 5> 6,448 17,436
35,649 50,345

Expected collection schedule is as BETWEEBEROT

follows:

Within 1 year 1FER 6,448 17,436
After 1 year but within 5 years 1554 14,334 14,478
After 5 years but within 10 years 5104 14,867 17,326
After 10 years 104F LA T4 — 1,105
35,649 50,345
The effective interest rate for the above financial assets was FilemEERNEREREF3.85% o

3.85% per annum.
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18 RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES 18 ZRFIRITEER
020 2019
020 £ 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
s AR T T
Pledged deposits B #1750 17,042 2,727
As at 31 December 2020, these deposits were pledged to MR2020%F12 A31 8 » ZEFEARCEFEF
banks as security for bills payable (Note 20). RITIERENZERELR (M15E20) -
19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 19 RERBRESEBYRHMRSE
CASH FLOW INFORMATION nEE R
(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: @ RERRLZEEYERE:
020 2019
020 £ 20194
B’000 RMB’000
=les AR T T
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFHERS 200,884 102,968
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on RITR S BIEST B RITHF R =
daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances are 15 B Z B R R BECR S o R1T
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history EATHRNEERFBTHEE
of default. AR e A ERTT ©
At 31 December 2020, cash and deposits that were R20205E12 A31H » A AR
placed with banks in the mainland China amounted to AHRITHRE S RERAARKE
RMB190,404,000 (2019: RMB102,889,000). Remittance of 190,404,0007T (20194F : A R #&
funds out of mainland China is subject to the relevant 102,889,0007T) © & A B A9 3
rules and regulations of foreign exchange control TR IE 78 38 <7 R B U A8 A 89 SN EE
promulgated by the PRC government. B IR B R AR o

ETERBRRERLE —ToTFEFR @
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BxBHBFTHEIN © HUAREFR)

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 19 BE&RBEESZEYREMRE

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED) nEER (&)
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash (b) BipTRIEELE (FiA)Fr
(used in)/generated from operations: BREZHKR:
2020 2019
20204 20194
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B AR¥ T ARBFIT
Operating activities ReEFTH
Profit before taxation i B A 69,049 208,322
Adjustments for: F IS EEL AR
Depreciation of property, BEEWHE  BE&EE
plant and equipment AREREEETE
owned and right-of-use
assets 5(c) 89,601 102,899
Amortisation 5y 5(c) 384 91
Gain on disposal of property, BR&EWE « HE&ERHE
plant and equipment Eollig 4 (3,142) (1,509)

Impairment losses on trade B 5 &k H A fEURIE &
and other receivables and AHEERBERRE

contract assets 5(c) 114,767 20,808

Finance costs B & B AN 5(a) 18,458 17,363
Changes in working capital: EELESED

(Increase)/decrease in FECEM, b

inventories (1,707) 16,018
Increase in contract assets BB EL I (116,226) (246,153)
Increase in trade and other B 5 & H e W sk I8

receivables 30 (503,926) (115,160)
Decrease/(increase) in RIS ELBEIE T

receivables under service 9 FE W R IB R

concession arrangement (3 hn) 14,696 (4,343)
Increase in restricted bank S PR ISR 17 A5 SR AZ A0

balances (14,315) (492)
Increase in trade and other B 5 Rk E M FE K8

payables bl 132,003 132,037
(Decrease)/increase in BHEE D), i

contract liabilities (7,602) 8,199
Cash (used in)/generated & (A /3B E

from operations (207,960) 138,080
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BxBABFTHEIN - HUAREFR)

(0

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 19 HERBRSZEYRHEMRE
> | = p? A2 =
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED) nEER (&)
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (0 MEITHAELNEGEZY
financing activities AR
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities TR AKEREFEBNES
from financing activities, including both cash and non- NBEZZE (BFERE LIRS
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities BE))HBE - MEBERBEZREN
are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash EELSAARRETEBERAR
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash SENGERERERTOERS
flow statement as cash flows from financing activities. MEFDAEENTESRE - A
ZIEEBEEREEHEANAE -
Ob 0
Payables fo 0
q 0 0 a
eq D D
D 04 P D ab 0 0
i 4
RITE i = E815 % g
B’000 B’000 B’000 B’000 B’000 RMB’000
ote
ote 0 0 0 0 4 0
0
[y 0 b N7 24
At 1 January 2020 #202061818 115,210 417 2,002 30,672 4,536 152,837
Changes from financing cash flows: MERLREFRH
28
Proceeds from bank loans BOERAERE 282,618 — - — — 282,618
Repayment of bank loans BEFITER (62,477) — — — — (62,477)
Payments of lease liabilities YHHERE — — (859) — — (859)
Payment for acquisition of equipment by A BEREAREZ
instalments 3R — — — (35,563) — (35,563)
Payments for capital element of obligations arising &4 B2 5 & £ £9
from sale and leaseback transactions EBNERDH R — — — — (2,411) (2,411)
Proceeds from borrowings under sale and ERMAERBHER
leaseback transaction P 30E - — - — 50,000 50,000
Interests paid BRFS — (16,746) — — — (16,746)
Total changes from financing cash flows BERSRETRE
2oait 20141 (6746 ©59) 5563 47,589 714562
Other changes: Hi %8 :
Acquisition of equipment by instalments PAD B SR AR — — - 74,866 — 74,866
Interest expenses (Note 5(a)) FIE X (H5E5() — 18,458 — — — 18,458
Others Hit — — — — (2,125) (2,125)
Total other changes | RE®es | - 1S - T4B66 (125 91199
At 31 December 2020 20206128318 335,351 2,129 1,143 69,975 50,000 458,598
BRERBRARAT —B-REEH @
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19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

()

(d)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities (Continued)

19

REEHR (&)
METHREENEEZY

()

iR ()

BekAeSBEYRAEMRE

Obligations
Payables for arising from
Amounts due acquisition of sale and
Interest to related Lease equipment by leaseback
Bank loans payable parties liabilities  instalments  transactions Total
A5 B 3R ERER
JEAF REE 7 BAREN RHEE
RITER RIS HIE HEAE ANE S oE 474 Ast
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR¥ETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARBTR
(Notes
(Note 21(a)) (Note 20) (Note 20)  (Note 21(h) 20 & 24)  (Note 21(c)
(20 %
(Ff5£21(a)) (B 5£20) (Ff5£20) (Bt aE21(b) 24)  (Hiz£E21(C)
At 1 January 2019 H2019F1818 122,751 105 13,872 3,693 34,948 13,961 189,330
Changes from financing cash flows: MERSRETRNET:
Proceeds from bank loans RITERAEHE 153,210 = = = = = 153,210
Repayment of bank loans BEFITER (160,751) = = = = = (160,751)
Payments of lease liabilities YHHEEEE - — — (1,691) = = (1,691)
Payment for acquisition of equipment by LA B R AR Z 3K
instalments — — — — (28,779) — (28,779)
Payments for capital element of obligations ERENRFEENER
arising from sale and leaseback BIE AR D1
transactions — — — — — (9,425) (9,425)
Interests paid BTFLE — (17,057) — — — — (17,051)
Advances from related parties A7 20 = = 25,972 = = = 25,972
Repayments to related parties 7] BBt 7 3B X = = (38,127) = = = (38,127)
Transactions with shareholders during the BESMERRETNRS
reorganisation = = (4,125) = = = (4,125)
Total changes from financing cash flows REBLREFTRNEDY
At (7,541) (17,051) (16,280) (1,691) (28,779) (9,425) (80,767)
Other changes: Hit 25 :
Acquisition of equipment by instalments LA BA 1 SRBE AR 6 — = = = 26,649 = 26,649
Interest expenses (Note 5(a)) 8 (FiFES() — 17,363 — — — — 17,363
Payables to shareholders due to Reorganisation [ Z 41 f& 1 B R 508 — — 4,125 — — — 4,125
Others Hit - - (1,717) - (2,146) - (3,863)
Total other changes AthE Bt — 17,363 2,408 — 24,503 = 44,274
At 31 December 2019 #2019%12A318 115,210 47 — 2,002 30,672 4,536 152,837
Significant non-cash transactions d) EXFBEERS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
acquired equipment with an aggregate cost of

RMB74,866,000 (2019: RMB26,649,000) by instalments.
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19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(e)

)

Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the cash flow statement for leases
comprise the following:

19 &/

3=
AL

(e)

Within operating cash flows KEIR SN
Within financing cash flows RLE IR S M

ERASEEYRAEMES

BER (A
HERSRLAE
FARSRERNBESEMEM
mT :

020 2019
0204 20194
O RMB'000

R AREBTTT

(21,571) (40,595)
(894) (1,871)

(22,465) (42,466)

These amounts all relate to lease rentals paid.

Net cash outflow arising from the acquisition
of a subsidiary
The recognised amounts of assets acquired and liabilities

at the date of acquisition of the subsidiary comprise the
following:

)

ZELBEAECNESARM -

BEMEAREENRER
i F 88

RUEH B AR B MEKBEE
REENERRSBREUT -

RMB’000

AR¥T T

Licenses (Note 11) e ER (M eE11) 3,300
Total consideration paid in cash LIRS MRERE 3,300
Less: cash of subsidiary acquired B BB B ARMIRS =
3,300

ETERBRRERLE —ToTFEFR @
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20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20 ESRHMEMNRKIE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T T ARETTT
Trade payables B S e IR
— third parties = F£=7 405,734 304,871
Bills payable FERTEE 127,677 53,787
Payables to suppliers of property, FERYIZE - BB KRR HE
plant and equipment [ 25,804 39,813
Payables for acquisition of equipment by A5 BAf 5B A R HEH
instalments — current portion JE 18 — BIERER S 47,400 21,471
Other payables and accruals H i B < 5RIB K FE FT 3R B 126,691 108,523
Obligation for bills endorsed with HEZENEEZRAT
recourse 18,499 52,477
Interest payable eI B 2,129 417
753,934 581,359
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, all the other trade and R 20204F 2019 12A318 * Fi & &
other payables are expected to be settled within one year or tE 5 R EMENFIBEERR —FAE
are repayable on demand. BERIEERKET AT -
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of HEREHR  REZAH X588
trade and bills payable (which are included in trade and other o2 B RNFERENER (B2
payables), based on the invoice date/transaction date, is as FESREMEAREBZR) ZERED
follows: M
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T T ARKETIT
Within 1 month ME AR 178,426 78,095
More than 1 month but within 3 months 1% 31& A 99,529 90,964
More than 3 months but within 6 months 3% 61& A 88,330 99,036
More than 6 months but within 12 6= 1218 A
months 62,392 47,579
More than 12 months BiB1218 A 104,734 42,984
533,411 358,658
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21 LOANS AND BORROWINGS 21 BERRER
020 2019
020 £ 20194
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 R AR F T
Non-current JE BN EA
Bank loans — secured IRITER — BER (a) 56,131 64,089
Lease liabilities HEEE (b) 44 403
Obligations arising from sale and EEREADRIEENET
leaseback transactions (© 33,366 =
o 89,541 | 64,492
Current BN &A
Bank loans — secured IRITER — BER (a) 279,220 51,121
Lease liabilities HEARE (b) 1,099 1,599
Obligations arising from sale and EERADRIEENET
lease back transactions (c) 16,634 4,536
e M. 296953 | 57,256
Total B 386,494 121,748
(a) Bank loans (@ MITERX
Bank loans were repayable as follows: RITERERLHWN AR :
020 2019
0204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
R ARBFIT
Less than 1 year —F A 279,220 51,121
1 to 2 years —EWFE 19,015 64,089
2 to 5 years M ZERF 37,116 =
335,351 115,210

ETERBRRERLE —ToTFEFR @
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LOANS AND BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

21

(@)

Bank loans (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, bank loans of RMB210,229,000
(2019: RMB115,210,000) were secured by pledged
properties of an independent property developer, among
which bank loan of RMB50,000,000 (2019:
RMB44,000,000) was also guaranteed by an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

As at 31 December 2020, bank loans of RMB75,165,000
(2019: nil) were secured by pledged machinery and
equipment of the Group (Note 10(iii)).

As at 31 December 2020, bank loans of RMB49,957,000
(2019: nil) were related to the outstanding commercial
acceptance bills discounted to banks with recourse.

In July 2020, Jianzhong Construction Technology entered
into a credit line agreement with Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.,
pursuant to which Jianzhong Construction Technology
was granted bank facilities of up to RMB150,000,000.
Such bank facilities were guaranteed by the Company,
the controlling shareholder of the Company and an
independent property developer with a guarantee fee
based on the drawdown amount. As at 31 December
2020, bank loans of RMB100,000,000 and undrawn bank
facilities that are available for use of RMB50,000,000
were guaranteed by the controlling shareholder of the
Ccompany.
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21

BERRER (&)

(@)

RITER(E)
M20205E12 8318 @ BT E R A
R#210,229,0007T (20194 : AR
#115,210,0007T) 39 A — @ % 32
MEREE R EERE
HOHEHBRBRITERARE
50,000,0007C (20194 : A R #&
44,000,0007T) 7R R AR &) 2 5
2EW B A RIREER -

M20205E12 8318 - BT E R A
R #75,165,0007T (20194 : )
VAZR 65 B /) B H 1R A A SRR B 1
AR (M EE10(0) °

M20205612 5318 - SRITE R A
R #49,957,0007T (20194 : f&)
AR EEEBRR T IR1TH AR (E
BRFEALRR(MERBIIES
AR

202047 A - B EREHL
FRITBRMDBR R AW
EOBYE O BRERERNEERER
= A A R #150,000,0007T & 8 17
BE - HRERITRERARA
RARERBRERENR —BRB M FEH
ERZEEEER  EREBRER
& 58 U ER » 20204 12 A 31
B - 8817 B 5 A R % 100,000,000
TR AR A] AL AR TR &
A R #50,000,0007T H 7% £= [H 142 A%
R R ELR o
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21 LOANS AND BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 21 ERRER(E)
(b) Lease liabilities by HEEE
AWMAMN — REBANELSH

Maturity analysis — contractual undiscounted cash flows

020 2019

0204 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000

R AREEF T

Less than 1 year —F A 1,125 1,649

1 to 2 years —EWFE 45 375

2 to 5 years E S — 45

Total undiscounted lease liabilities ARBLIRFAE B 1E42%8 1,170 2,069

Less: total future interest expenses & : KK F| S5k 4258 27) (67)
Lease liabilities included in the STABREHBEMRREKEN

consolidated statements of HEaE
financial position 1,143 2,002

o — HESENRE

Maturity analysis — present value of lease liabilities

02( 2019

020 £ 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000

S ARBFIT

Less than 1 year —F A 1,099 1,599
1 to 2 years —EWFE 44 359
2 to 5 years EF S — 44
Present value of lease liabilities HEBEMNRE 1,143 2,002

ETERBRRERLE —ToTFEFR @
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21 LOANS AND BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 21 ERRER(E)

(c) Obligations arising from sale and leaseback (0 BERERXRZFELENERK
transactions
Obligations arising from sale and leaseback transactions EREEERHEENEFHER
were repayable as below: ZHEWR ¢
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AR¥ET T
Less than 1 year —F R 18,707 4,951
1to 2 years —EmMF 17,970 —
2 to 3 years ME=F 17,173 =
Total undiscounted obligations KRR EBREBRZ HE
arising from sale and leaseback ERBERE
transactions 53,850 4,951
Less: total future interest expenses & : &K F| S5 4258 (3,850) (415)

Obligations arising from sale and T AGREHBMRRRNER
leaseback transactions included HERXRSEENEK
in the consolidated statements of

financial position 50,000 4,536
Maturity analysis — present value of obligations arising Yo — EREEXRZELEN
from sale and leaseback transactions HEKEE

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T AREBT T

Less than 1 year —FNR 16,634 4,536
1to 2 years —EmMF 16,687 =
2 to 3 years ME=F 16,679 =

Present value of obligations arising &% HEX FELENEL
from sale and leaseback RE
transactions 50,000 4,536
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21

22

23

BAANRESIR)

LOANS AND BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

(c) Obligations arising from sale and leaseback

transactions (Continued)

Maturity analysis — present value of obligations arising
from sale and leaseback transactions (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, obligations arising from sale
and leaseback transactions of RMB50,000,000 (2019:
RMB1,686,000) were secured by underlying assets with
carrying values of RMB92,585,000 (2019: RMB14,789,000)
respectively as mentioned in Note 10(ii). All the
obligations arising from sale and leaseback transactions
for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 were
guaranteed by the controlling shareholder of the Group.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Defined contribution retirement plan

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC, the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”)
organised by the PRC municipal government authorities
whereby the Group is required to make contributions to the
Schemes based on a percentage of the participating
employee’s salaries. The local government authorities are
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
retired employees.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
pension benefits associated with the Schemes beyond the
contributions described above.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement
of financial position represents:

21

22

23

ERRfER (&)

() EREARZELENER
(&)

AL — ERHEEARZIEEN
EKEE(E)

M2020F12 A31H - £ &M@
SEENFEREARES50,000,0007T
(20194 : A R #1,686,0007T) LA
B E A AR 92 585,0005T
(20194 : AR#14,789,0007T) £
6 B8 & 2 B 4K 18 (40 BT &£ 10(i) B
i) - # =20204F K 2019F12 A
JNEULEFE  ERBERRIELE
MATBEEBYHAEBEZERBER
R -

EERKEA

E B G RGR R 5T 8
BEFEERS TRARER  A%E
H R B B A 72 B ol o B T BT
[0 48 44 10 455 SR IR AR FU BT B (T3t
2))  BUAEEARESRESTE
) — S 53 LR B B < ST AT
BERETRAERSHRAS 2 KA

BE-

BR £l RSN - AN SR AR A L At B B
BRENBERNERARERAERS -

REMBRRERANFAEHR

SBEMBRRRAKEERH
IHIE -

(@)

020 2019
0204 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000

5k ARBT T

PRC corporate income tax payable FEftA B ZEFT5F

9,190 12,238

S B @

BHERBRERAF
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23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

(i)  Movement of each component of deferred tax assets
and liabilities
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position and the movements during the

year are as follows:

Deferred tax arising
from:

IESEB A RR

AR
(

Spds

~

EMBRRRANAEHR

b)) ERIAEEHREEERA
& :

@

EERBEERABENEA
ﬁJi"‘BﬁE’Jﬁib

KRG PRI R AFER A
EERBEE(8F) A
PREB Y AR FF R BN T

At 1 January 2019 E"2019¢1 A18 7,050 3,916 (10,424) 1,090 1,632
Effect on deferred tax TR FEEIRTER

balances resulting from BiEHR e 8

a change in tax rate (B FE6(D) i)

(Note 6(b)(iii) (2,781) (1,566) 3,839 (208) (716)
Credited/(charged) to REB&EANTTAS

profit or loss (€itlii ) 3,214 4,775 (4,926) 52 3,115
At 31 December 2019 7K2019F 128318

and 1 January 2020 K&2020F1A1H 7,483 7,125 (11,511) 934 4,031
Effect on deferred tax HEEBEIELTR

balances resulting from BEBZZE

a change in tax rate (Bt FE6(D)IN))

(Note 6(b)(iii) (120) — 147 (16) 11
Credited/(charged) to REBERFAS

profit or loss (30BR) 17,773 (3,336) (19,454) (467) (5,484)
At 31 December 2020 72020412 A318 25,136 3,789 (30,818) 451 (1,442)
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23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 23
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
(Continued)
(ii) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of
financial position
Net deferred tax (liabilities)/asset 4R & BB &R N

recognised in the consolidated EEE”E’JLLTRIE

statement of financial position afE)  EEFH

mEMBRRRANAEHR

by CERBELEREEERE
& (&)

(i) ERREMBRRROHIR

020 2019
0204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
< AREEF T

(1,442) 4,031

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with Note 1(qg), the Group has not
recognised deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative
tax losses of RMB104,000 (2019: RMB2,373,000) as it is
not probable that future taxable profits against which the
losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses expire within five
years under current tax legislation.

(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 December 2020, deferred tax liabilities of
RMB42,193,000 (2019: RMB35,460,000) in respect of the
PRC dividend withholding tax relating to the
undistributed profits of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries
were not recognhised as the Company controls the
dividend policy of these subsidiaries. Based on the
assessment made by management as at the end of each
of the reporting period, it was determined that the
undistributed profits of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries
would not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

24 OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other non-current liabilities represent the non-current portion
of payables for acquisition of equipment by instalments. For
the year ended 31 December 2020, the effective interest rate
of the payables is 7.2% (2019: 7.2%).

24

(0 RABERELEHEEE

RIRFTEE1(0) - ARE LR Rit
751 18 &5 18 A R #104,0007T (2019
F + A\R#2,373,0007) HERIE
BIHEE - I%Em@m%ﬁi
EERREETAALESAH
FA 11t 55 65 48 0 5K SR B SR BB F -
REBRITHE - BEBBRAF
AEIH -

d REREZEHEES
M2020E12 318 - IF £ 5t AR
NGIR SN == RN B o s b !
R ERE BN ERETH
Iéiiéffa%/\iﬁ%zlz,waooo%(zow
& AR #35,460,0007T)
ZAN/N] 2 %U;Z%Mﬂ%@jmﬂxg
BE - BRETEERSHRERR
EE BTG EREARAAT T E
B AR RDIRFERA AR
RASHEITDIR o

HikEREBEE
HihIERB B EIE AL A TR AR
MENFIERIEREIZ 5 © B ZE 20204
128318 ILEE - BAFENEEREF R
57.2% (20194 : 7.2%) °

BHERBRERAT —E_TFFER @
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(@)

@ JIANZHONG CONSTRUCTION DEVELOPMENT LIMITED  Annual Report 2020

25 EXR-REERKRE

Movements in components of equity (@ EZBILH
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REEFE ERSIEN Y K& E
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated REARBRETN NGRS
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of ZoREVEFRHBME KA 7
changes in equity. Details of the changes in the AR #E E B I8 B B2 B FF 15 #0540
Company'’s individual components of equity between the T~
beginning and the end of the year are set out below:
Share Exchange Accumulated
Company capital reserve losses Total
PN Bg 2= R fE REER A&t
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
izt AREFIT ARBTFT ARBTT ARETTT
Balance as at 5 February R201952A5H
2019 (date of (A B H)
incorporation) Y &5 Bk — — — —
Changes in equity for 2019: A2019F M EH
BE
Loss for the period HREE — — (968) (968)
Other comprehensive income  E ff, & & W 2% = 4 = 4
Total comprehensive income 2 & Utz 48 58 — 4 (968) (964)
Issuance of new shares BITHIR 25(c) = = = =
At 31 December 2019 A20195
12A31H —* 4 (968) (964)
Company apita p ese 0sse 0
PN i 25 IR 17 328 B I 53 6 48 2REFE S
Note RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
M‘Ti 2 ik == 2 ik 2 K o
Balance as at 1 January 2020 20201 B1BH
&e —* — 4 (968) (964)
Changes in equity for 2020: R2020F MR
28 .
Loss for the year FAEE — — — (4,466) (4,466)
Other comprehensive income Hi2mias — — (16,579) — (16,579)
Total comprehensive income 2EREEE — — (16,579) (4,466) (21,045)
Capitalisation issue N 25(c)i) 4,246 (4,246) — — —
Issuance of ordinary shares upon  RERXAREEER
initial public offering BT EK 25(c)(ii) 1,425 209,160 — — 210,585
At 31 December 2020 20205124318 5,671 204,914 (16,575) (5,434) 188,576
* The balances represent amounts less than RMB1,000. * ZERBEBTEARE,000
7_T_, °
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 25 EX - RERRE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Dividends b)) EKE
Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company FRENAR I ERRRARE
attributable to the year:
020 2019
020 £ 20194
B’000 RMB'000
R AREBTTT
Final dividend proposed after the — R ¥REEIRE BRI
end of the reporting period of BEREER2.08% 1L
HK2.08 cents per ordinary share (20194 : &)
(2019: Nil) 10,941 —
The final dividend proposed after the end of the RBEPRREEZORPBRER
reporting period has not been recognised as a liability at WEARERERBAG -
the end of the reporting period.
(c) Share capital (0 B&
Issued share capital EBRITRA
Number of
Issued and fully paid: shares ordinary shares
ERTRAR: &% EE ZiER
Note ‘000 HK$'000 RMB'000
Bt 5 T A% T T ARMT T
At 1 January 2020 20201 A1H 10 = =
Capitalisation issue B EAT 0) 468,740 4,687 4,246
Issuance of ordinary RERAFREES
shares upon initial ‘T BRI
public offering (if) 156,250 1,563 1,425
At 31 December 2020 720204
12A31H 625,000 6,250 5,671
o The balances represent amounts less than RMB1,000. * E_i%,\éﬁﬁ@%é?\i)\iﬁ%moo
L

ETERBRRERLE —ToTFEFR @
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBFTIESN - HIAARESIR)

25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)
(c) Share capital (Continued)
Issued share capital (Continued)
(1)  Capitalisation issue
In accordance with the shareholders’ resolution of
the Company dated 18 February 2020, the
Company allotted and issued 468,740,000 shares
on 18 March 2020, credited as fully paid, at par to
the shareholders whose names were on the
register of member of the Company as of the close
of business on 13 March 2020. This resolution was
conditional on the share premium account being
credited as a result of the Company'’s initial public
offering and pursuant to the written resolution; the
existing issued shares shall rank pari passu in all
respects.

(i) Issuance of ordinary shares upon initial public

offering

On 18 March 2020, the Company issued
156,250,000 shares with par value of HK$0.01 each,
at a price of HK$1.65 per share by initial public
offering. Net proceeds (after offsetting listing
expenses of RMB24,456,000) from such issue
amounted to approximately RMB210,585,000, out of
which RMB1,425,000 and RMB209,160,000 were
recorded in share capital and share premium
respectively.

(d) Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium account of the Company is distributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company would be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(e)

@

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Capital reserve

Pursuant to the shareholders’ resolution on 24
January 2019, the paid-in capital of Jianzhong
Construction Technology was increased by
RMB20,450,000. Two investors injected a total
amount of RMB92,025,000 and the premium of
RMB71,575,000 over nominal share value arising
from the capital injections was credited into capital
reserve.

Statutory reserve

As stipulated by regulations in the PRC, the
Company'’s subsidiaries established and operated in
the PRC are required to appropriate 10% of their
profit after tax (after offsetting prior year losses), as
determined in accordance with the PRC accounting
standards, to the statutory surplus reserve until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered
capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made
before distribution of a dividend to equity owners.

The statutory surplus reserve can be used to offset
prior years' losses, if any, and may be converted
into capital provided that the balance of the
reserve after such conversion is not less than 25%
of the entity’s registered capital.

Special reserve

Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations, a reserve
for production safety is required to be set up and
to be appropriated at a fixed rate on the revenue
of the subsidiaries of the Group established in the
PRC. The reserve can be utilised for expenses or
capital expenditures incurred in connection with
production safety.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of entities incorporated
outside mainland China. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in
Note 1(t).
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(e)

(v)

Other reserve

On 7 May 2019, in connection with the
Reorganisation, Mr. Xun Minghong and a number of
shareholders (collectively the “then shareholders”)
entered into an equity transfer agreement with
Fujian Fuhai Rui Construction Development Co, Ltd,
formerly known as Fujian Jianzhong Investment
Consultancy Co., Ltd.("Jianzhong Investment
Consultancy”), an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, pursuant to which the
then shareholders transferred 100% equity interest
in Jianzhong Construction Technology to Jianzhong
Investment Consultancy, in exchange for 1%
additional equity interest in Jianzhong Investment
Consultancy respectively.

On 16 May 2019, Fujian Hairuncheng Construction
Development Co., Ltd., formerly known as Fujian
Jianzhong Corporate Management Co., Ltd., entered
into an equity transfer agreement with the then
shareholders to acquire the 1% equity interest in
Jianzhong Investment Consultancy for an aggregate
consideration of approximately RMB4,125,000. The
difference between the historical carrying value of
paid-in capital of Jianzhong Construction
Technology amounting to RMB168,450,000 and the
consideration payable to the then shareholders was
transferred into other reserve.

@ JIANZHONG CONSTRUCTION DEVELOPMENT LIMITED  Annual Report 2020

25 EX - REERKE (&)
RENEER BN (F)

(e)

(v)

H %
M2019F5A7H - gL E 4
ME  AIRAEEREER
R(MBIERRKRR]) H
Fujian Fuhai Rui
Construction Development
Co, Ltd (RIHE A@ESE EHR
HEBABR AR - [#F
HEFER]  AAE—HMA
BE2EWB AR5 A%E
EEHE Bt ERRE
&R BB e 2 EP AR AE
EETERREZER  AD
AR ERGE R 1R B 7 1%
EEINIKAE o

M2019F5 8168 @ 828
EWERBEREAR QA (AT
BARREAETLXEEESR
RAR)EERRRT
EwEE S ARERETE
BEEAN1%RE ARE
#73 NRH#4,125,0007T © 2
PRI EESEANALT
3R @ B A R # 168,450,000
TTHEMERBRENNREZ
MM ZREE A LM -



_—.—".—#—__

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BxBABFTHEIN - HUAREFR)

25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

()

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products and services commensurately with the
level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio.

For this purpose, net debt is defined as total debt (which
includes interest-bearing loans and borrowings, and
payables for acquisition of equipment by instalments)
less cash and cash equivalents.

25 BEX - FERKRE (&)
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020 2019

0204 20194

B’000 RMB'000

R M ARET T

Loans and borrowings BERRER 386,494 121,748
Payables for acquisition of A9 BRI SR8 AR Y

equipment by instalments &1 5RIR 69,975 30,672

Sub-total /NEE 456,469 152,420

Less: Cash and cash equivalents W BRekREFEY (200,884) (102,968)

Net debt FERE 255,585 49,452

Equity e 1,093,345 824,132

Net debt-to-capital ratio FEEERLER 23.4% 6.0%
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest and currency risks arises
in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group's
exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these
risks are described below.

(@) Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables, bills receivable, contract assets and
receivables under service concession arrangement.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

The Group has established a credit risk management
policy under which individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers. These evaluations focus on
the customer’s history of making payments and current
ability to pay, and take into account information specific
to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group’s customers are mainly real estate companies
or main contractors in mainland China. Significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when the
Group has significant exposure to individual customers.
At the end of the reporting period, 66.6% (2019: 62.2%)
and 80.4% (2019: 85.2%) of the total trade receivables
and contract assets was due from the Group's largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables, bills receivable and contract assets at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using
a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss
allowance is not further distinguished between the
Group’s different customer bases.
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(@) Credit risk (Continued)

26 Bt

S'Z
(@)

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade

receivables, bills receivable and contract assets:

E@H%ﬂ&%ﬂlﬂ%ﬁ

(&

FERR (&)
TR#TIALBE 5 B R
BURERANAENEERR
REHERAKER

~

2020
20204

Current (not past due) BER (R HA) 7.1 626,374 (44,762)
Less than 12 months past due  #H3 A 1218 A 10.0 814,365 (81,095)
More than 12 months past due I Hif8:@ 1218 A 26.4 141,257 (37,222)
1,581,996 (163,079)

2019

20194
Expected loss  Gross carrying Loss
rate amount allowance
BHIBEX FEaE BRERE
% RMB'000 RMB'000
% ARETIT ARETTT
Current (not past due) BIER (R ) 3.9 510,147 (19,946)
Less than 12 months past due  #H1 A 1218 A 5.6 433,314 (24,282)
More than 12 months past due #Hi8:@ 121 A 17.9 22,905 (4,095)
966,366 (48,323)

In addition to above provision matrix, the Group has Br Bl B RSN AEEE

made individual loss allowance for a certain customer.
As at 31 December 2020, the accumulated individual loss
allowance was RMB686,000 (2019: RMB686,000) with the
carrying amounts before loss allowance of RMB686,000
(2019: RMB686,000).

—HBEERPATIRMAIBKE
1 o PA2020%E12 8318 © 25 A
BB K EH B AR 686,000
(20194 = AR ¥686,0007T) ' Bk
BREBIEEEAARE
686,0007C (20194 : A R &
686,0007T) °

ETERBRRERLE —ToTFEFR @
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(@ Credit risk (Continued)

Expected loss rates are based on historical credit loss
experience over the past years or loss rates of
comparable companies with published financials when
there was no sufficient historical experience. These rates
are adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the trade
receivables, bills receivable and contract assets.

_—

For receivables under service concession arrangement,
the Group estimated loss allowances based on expected
cash short falls calculated by discounting using the
corresponding effective interest rate. As at 31 December
2020, the Group considered the loss allowances for
receivables under service concession arrangement to be
immaterial.

The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the Group's
expected credit losses was mainly reflected in the delays
in collection from customers. The Group reviewed the
current conditions as to delay of payments by its
customers compared to historical data. Based on such
review, the loss allowance for expected credit losses as
at 31 December 2020 increased significantly as
compared to 31 December 2019.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of
trade receivables, bills receivable, contract assets and
receivables under service concession arrangement during
the year is as follows:

26

)
kv

(@)

{%@ S EEREMIAND

(&

~

EERR (F)
BHEBBEXRBBEFEELE
ERRBI M B R E L &R
QBT BERN T E LR
NRAMBRRGE - ZFHLERR
BEEBANKERER  ERMRR
RASEHE S RKHIA - B
SBEREHNEERFFEIAN
RERRNBEELAE

FhAR TSy 5T 22 R IR T B JE WK
AME AREREBEERERE
BRA R H TR RS MR
BB RER - N2020912A
318 ARERRREHFEL
PRIA T B B WRRFT IRV IB R &
BILTERX -

COVID-19R 7 177 ¥ 7~ & (= 78 23
EEBANEETTRRAERP
IR SRAE R - R B 2 ¥ L E 52
BENEEEFPEENZOER]
- ER A AR - 20205
12A3MBWMEHREEBRLNEE
B 8201912 A31H KX ig 1%
e

B 5 R - BIRELE A
2 R T A B T 0
g B B 18 26 R B AR PO
SHERT -

02( 2019

020 £ 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000

R ARETTT

Balance at 1 January R1ATE W &R 49,009 28,201

Amounts written off during the year 4 Rl §4% 58 (11) —
Impairment losses recognised FAEERBEEE

during the year 114,767 20,808

Balance at 31 December R12 31 H K&k 163,765 49,009
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26 HKEBREEREMIAEND
A= —d
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS F1E (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Liquidity risk (b) FRENMEE R
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity NE B BRI E AT BEEER
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, BeH K REERERETE
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and N EREFTENESHEER
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial AARSEERER THAGERE
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short HE - Uh2EBERENRE
and longer term. BaFKe
The following tables show the remaining contractual TERDERRBERENRESRE
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the ARAEE T ZRERN R
Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on FHBINRHARERN®REHR
contractual undiscounted cash flows and the earliest WEEE BN T &R
date the Group can be required to pay:
020 2019
0204 2019
0 discounted outflo Contractual undiscounted cash outflow Carrying
AR amount o AURANBRETR amount on
onsolidated consolidated
0 0 0 Within -~ More than 1 More than 2 statements of
0 but le a 1 year or year but less years but less financial
on de 0 ositio on demand  than 2 years than 5 years Total position
& B RANE
TS VLA, 160 £ 2EE RARAZ
%8 F R F LR A% Il REREE 26 HA SEAR Ehl BEAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 B’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R R¥% R R R ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTE
Trade payables BEHRENFHA 405,734 — - 405,734 405,734 304,871 — — 304,871 304,871
Bills payable B RE 127,677 — — 127,677 127,677 53,787 = — 53,787 53,787
Payables to suppliers of property, EfT#% Bz &
plant and equipment RBHRERTE 25,804 — — 25,804 25,804 39,813 = — 39,813 39,813
Payables for acquisition of WA BHFBAR
equipment by instalments ol AR e e 48,890 17,002 6,403 72,295 69,975 22,533 9,495 — 32,028 30,672
Other payables and accruals H A JEA A R JEA
B 39,654 — - 39,654 39,654 44,315 - - 44315 44315
Interest payable RIS 2,129 — - 2,129 2,129 47 — — 17 07
Obligation for bills endorsed with B R EEEHE
recourse B 18,499 — — 18,499 18,499 52,477 - - 52477 52477
Bank loans RITER 292,714 21,963 39,980 354,657 335,351 58,427 67,577 — 126,004 115,210
Lease liabilities HEARE 1,125 45 - 1,170 1,143 1,649 375 45 2,069 2,002
Obligations arising from sale and &% MER 5E £ H)
leaseback transactions B3] 18,707 17,970 17,173 53,850 50,000 4,951 = = 4,951 4,53
980,933 56,980 63556 1,101,469 1,075,966 583,240 77,047 45 660,732 648,100
EPERBRRERLAT —B-TEFRH @
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arising primarily from the
bank loans, lease liabilities, payables for acquisition of
equipment by instalments and obligations arising from
sale and leaseback transactions. Borrowings issued at
variable rates and fixed rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk
respectively.

()

@

Interest rate risk profile

The following table, as reported to the
management of the Group, details the interest rate
risk profile of the Group’s borrowings at the end of
the reporting period:

E@@%ﬂ&@ﬂlﬂ%ﬂ

(&

~

)
kv

(0 HNEE
AEBENFEERE B KGRI
B HERE U HARE
AREOHEMARBERE RHEER
HELENRS - FHFEREE
MEMBRS RS A EBEER
SREFEEB KA FEMNER

B -

() RNEREBRHER
TRHANAEERFEHR
B 1 SR 0 I 2 R R B

2020 2019
20205 20194F
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BERAI=E FRAI=
% RMB’000 % RMB'000
% ARETRT % AREFT
Fixed rate borrowings: EEFEMERK :
Lease liabilities HEAE 6.9 1,143 6.9 2,002
Obligations arising from sale ##& B FEE
and leaseback &S
transactions 4.8 50,000 7.2 4,536
Bank loans RITER 3.4-8.0 199,957 6.4 44,000
Payables for acquisition of A5 BRf R BEA
equipment by instalments &% & A FE < A 7.2 69,975 7.2 30,672
321,075 81,210
Variable rate borrowings: R ENFIREN :
Bank loans |ITER 5.3-6.8 135,394 6.8 71,210
Total borrowings CE& G 456,469 152,420
Fixed rate borrowings as a &% F = {& Fk(h &
percentage of total REFENBE DL
borrowings 70.3% 53.3%
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 26 J?’]’%EI‘E‘R EREmMIAENA
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS F1E (&)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) () FM=R k(&)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) BBREISN
The Group does not account for any fixed rate REBRBETABBERIE
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or NEEAFENEMEE SR
loss. Therefore, in respect of the fixed rate BE-BEit rEEITEM
instrument, a change in interest rates at the = RIS HBHONFEEE
reporting date would not affect the profit or loss. TETBIBR -
In respect of the exposure to cash flow interest HRAEE R RS BRI
rate risk arising from floating rate bank loans held BHZEFRBITERESE
by the Group at the end of the reporting period, MRS REFERERLHO
the impact on the Group’s profit after tax and ANEE B KT 18 F) B R AR B F
retained profits is estimated as an annualised R ST Ll F R E B
impact on interest expense or income of such a ?;zifﬁﬁ%fﬂ’ﬁum%}ﬂiﬂﬁz
change in interest rates. As at 31 December 2020, AR 52 2 - 182020512 A
it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 318  {HaFFIREE A7
500 basis points in interest rates, with all other T FE5001E E 2L - MFT A
variables held constant, would have decreased/ HEMmBHBFIE  AEH
increased the Group’s profit after tax and retained & A E KR A T R
profits by approximately RMB5,754,000 (2019: L HENH AR 5,754,000
RMB3,026,000). The analysis is performed on the T (20194 : AR ¥
same basis as 2019. 3,026,0007T) ° #% 2 #7 £
2019F Wy D AT EHE — 2 o
(d) Currency risk d) E¥EE
The Group had no significant foreign exchange exposure AAEBEBRBORIAARKE
as substantially all the Group's transactions are FHE - SRS B I 48 oK HMNE R
denominated in RMB. i o
(e) Fair value (e) A¥E
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial 20204 K 2019F 124318 » &
instruments carried at amounts not materially different SESRTEMNRMEHLE AT
from their fair values as at 31 December 2020 and 2019. (ERIZ:: =Nl
27 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 27 BEAXREE

MN20205E12 A318 @ AR BHKT
REBENSRENEREEDT

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2020 not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

2019
20194
RMB'000
e 8 ARBTT

Contracted for B &4

10,044 8,110

S B @

BHERBRERAF
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28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@)

(b)

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors as disclosed in Note 7 and certain of the
highest paid employees as disclosed in Note 8, is as
follows:

28 EXBEHAIRS
(@)

TEEEASFHM
AEEETREEABZHM (B4
SNEARRES (WERMHE?)
METERHMESR (RENRME
B)MEE) M T :

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®¥T T AERET T

Short-term employee benefits 5 HE B g A 3,817 3,138
Contributions to retirement benefit RAKIEF 2L

scheme 20 27

3,837 3,165

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note
5(0)).

Other transactions with related parties

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
provided construction service to an entity controlled by
the controlling shareholder. Revenue generated from
such service during the period was RMB2,263,000 (2019:
RMB2,363,000) and the balances of contract assets and
trade receivables was RMB2,123,000 as at 31 December
2020 (2019: RMB480,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had
short-term leases of factory and office premise from
three related companies. The aggregate rental expenses
incurred during the year amounted to RMB2,097,000
(2019: RMB2,471,000). The balances of other payables to
the above companies was RMB2,218,000 as at 31
December 2020 (2019: RMB2,957,000)
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28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Other transactions with related parties
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of right-
of-use assets related to long-term leases from related
parties were RMB nil (2019: RMB331,000), which were
included in the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment in Note 10(ii). Balances of lease liabilities to
related parties were RMB583,000 (2019: RMB1,085,000)

28 EXBEBALIXRZ (&)
(b)y EEBLTHEMRISE (&)

M20205E12 A318 @ W 5T &
HHEEEENEREEERAREA
BARBZIT(2019F : AR
331,0007T) - & A M 1000 9
¥ BERRENRRB- B
Bt ERENEBRAARE
583,0007T (20194 : A R #&
1,085,0007T) °

M20205E12 8318 » LA S Bi 5%
BAXZENENRERARE
6,836,0007C (20194 : A R ¥
19,327,0007T) - FA 2 % A 58 4% il
BN Al B AR o

As at 31 December 2020, payables for acquisition of
equipment by instalments of RMB6,836,000 (2019:
RMB19,327,000) were guaranteed by a company
controlled by the controlling shareholder.

BEREREBRITER MERE
BHERZEENEHFRRMER
B2 72 B M 5E21(a) & M &E21(C) 3%

Guarantees provided by the Controlling Shareholder
relating to bank loans/facilities and obligations arising
from sale and leaseback transactions were disclosed in

Note 21(a) and Note 21(c) respectively.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any
other material transactions or outstanding balances with
related parties.

= o
B EXFT I EEE S
TFERGHER -
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29 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 29 A TRIEEBMFERIE
POSITION
2020 2019
202045 20194
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR® T AREF T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—EHEBARZIEE —* —*
Amount due from a subsidiary U — FE B B A B 2 F OB 185,066 —
S 185006 | T
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables &1 ZtI8 K £ b fE Ug kA — 6,100
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEEEED 14,774 79
R 14774 | 6179
Current liabilities REBEE
Amount due to a subsidiary FEAS — M B AR 2 58 11,148 6,727
Other payables and accruals S 518 K B R RR 116 416
T E 11,24 | 7143
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE (8E)FHE 3,510 (964)
Total assets less current liabilites #EERARBERS 188,576 (964)
NET ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) BE/(AB)FH 188,576 (964)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRF#E 25
Share capital A& A 5,671 —
Reserves ] 182,905 (964)
TOTAL EQUITY AR 188,576 (964)

& The balances represent amounts less than RMB1,000.

@ JIANZHONG CONSTRUCTION DEVELOPMENT LIMITED  Annual Report 2020
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K SBFTHESN -

30

31

BAANRESIR)

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING 30 EERBRIEZERAZL
PARTY
At 31 December 2020, the directors consider the ultimate R20205F12 A31H - EERAREER
controlling shareholder of the Group to be Mr. Xun Minghong. R R BRI B AL E » R 20204F
As at 31 December 2020, the immediate controlling 12A3NH AEBNEEERRRER
shareholder of the Group is MHX Investment Limited, which MHX Investment Limited » H 7 5 &
was incorporated in the BVI and does not produce financial THREEMK Y B ERE A HEARE
statements available for public use. Rz Bk o
POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 31 BE£2020F12A31HLEFE
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED )R =] *i&&ﬁ@ﬂ%‘ﬂ ~ #ET
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR HARZENBESE
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HEZSZVWBHREANTEZERE  F8g
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards TR A B MR EIRN B ZE 2020512 A
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year 318 IEFE #AREBE RN Z ST
ended 31 December 2020 and which have not been adopted in WMERARMEERT ~ FHETERIRZRE -
these financial statements. These developments include the ZEEFTBRIEA T A RE RS BB Y
following which may be relevant to the Group. AR o
Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUTAEBR %%
MY 5T HA R A K
Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the BB B RE LR EINR 2(1EF] 1 January 2022
Conceptual Framework S EZR ARt 202241818
Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and éi’ééﬁﬁﬁﬂ%%fo%%’ 1 January 2022
Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use M BB REE BT 20221818
B FT 15 ;IR
Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts BB EREITR 2B 1 January 2022

— Cost of Fulfilling a Contract BES ,’7 JE? =X O] %N 202241818
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 BB 75 5 2RI 2018 5F = 2020 4F 1 January 2022
Cycle 8 ER B 6 2 e 20221 H18

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments, new standards and
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results
of operations and financial position.

AEBE I ETRAR &R ERPENZ
FRIEF - MR EARRENRE -2
BRIRLL  HEWRRAZENER
HASENKEEE NI BRANELE
AREHETK -
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FIVE YEARS SUMMARY

AFEHE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for each of the last five financial years is set out below:

AEEBE T AN REESFHLEURE
EREEEERIMT

For the year ended 31 December

BZE128318LLEE

020 2019 2018 2017 2016
0204 20194 20184F 20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
= ARBTIT AREFTT AREBTFIT ARETT
Revenue U &5 1,278,769 1,578,218 1,192,750 498,857 156,754
Cost of sales $HE R A (990,338) | (1,224,195) (907,228) (368,999) (118,618)
Gross profit EF 288,431 354,023 285,522 129,858 38,136
Other net income H b F U A 10,176 15,608 1,762 812 336
Administrative TR X
expenses (93,154) (118,908) (80,820) (25,655) (12,441)
Impairment loss on  EEEF A& 4 FTE £ HY
assets arising from  EEREEE
contracts with
customers (114,767) (20,608) (15,496) (9,963) (2,430)
Other operating HMgEm
expenses (3,179) (4,230) (4,866) (53) (25)
Profit from £ R
operations 87,507 225,685 186,102 94,999 23,576
Finance costs b & B A (18,458) (17,363) (9,121) (5,439) (900)
Profit before taxation %t A7 %E 69,049 208,322 176,981 89,560 22,676
Income tax Frigs i (9,299) (29,082) (36,487) (22,011) (5,764)
Profit for the year FRFE 59,750 179,240 140,494 67,549 16,912
Earnings per share BERER
Basic and diluted EAREE(ARE)
(RMB) 0.10 0.38 030 N/ATEHRA NATEA
As at 31 December
MW12H831H
020 2019 2018 2017 2016
020 20194F 20184 20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R AREBFTT ARBFT ARBTT ARBTT
Total assets BEE 2,273,919 1,562,000 1,244,978 771,495 314,626
Total liabilities waE 1,180,574 (737,868) (687,990) (458,601) (259,281)
Total equity ey 1,093,345 824,132 556,988 312,894 55,345

@ JIANZHONG CONSTRUCTION DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

Annual Report 2020




<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles false
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments false
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo false
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo false
  /PreserveFlatness false
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages false
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages false
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages false
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks true
      /AddColorBars true
      /AddCropMarks true
      /AddPageInfo true
      /AddRegMarks true
      /BleedOffset [
        14.173230
        14.173230
        14.173230
        14.173230
      ]
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure true
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MarksOffset 0
      /MarksWeight 0.283460
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PageMarksFile /JapaneseWithCircle
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
    <<
      /AllowImageBreaks true
      /AllowTableBreaks true
      /ExpandPage false
      /HonorBaseURL true
      /HonorRolloverEffect false
      /IgnoreHTMLPageBreaks false
      /IncludeHeaderFooter false
      /MarginOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetadataAuthor ()
      /MetadataKeywords ()
      /MetadataSubject ()
      /MetadataTitle ()
      /MetricPageSize [
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetricUnit /inch
      /MobileCompatible 0
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (GoLive)
        (8.0)
      ]
      /OpenZoomToHTMLFontSize false
      /PageOrientation /Portrait
      /RemoveBackground false
      /ShrinkContent true
      /TreatColorsAs /MainMonitorColors
      /UseEmbeddedProfiles false
      /UseHTMLTitleAsMetadata true
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




